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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market
("“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Combest
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this document misleading.
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The following chart sets out the structure of the Company and its
principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017:

COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED

BREEZRAERAE

Group Structure
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Chairman’s Statement

TE®SE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Combest

AANERERERERBRAR ([ARF]E

Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to our Eg([EFg))RIICERREERARARE
shareholders the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries MEAR (5B [ AEEDEZE T —+FX
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017. A=THIEFENFHR-
Continuing Operations Discontinued operations Total
BESEEY BALEE£%K &E
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF | T-RE| ZB-tE| ZE-RE| ZEB-tE | —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FART TAR FAL TER FET
Revenue LIﬂU\ 53,570 31,531 17,459 75,681 71,029 107,212
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable REBEAEGEE
to owners of the Company M\/ (B8) 11,911 17,066 41,184 (101,386) 53,095 (84,320)
Earning/(loss) per share gRERN/ (EB)
- basic -EX 0.32 cents? | 0.51 cents | 1.13 cents? | (3.01) cents” | 1.45 cents | (2.50) cents?>
- diluted -#E 032 cents? | 0.51cents? | 1.13 cents? | (3.01) cents? | 1.45 centsZ | (2.50) cents

The Group continued to focus on (i) money lending, (ii) advisory
services include provision of consultancy services and company
secretarial services, and (iii) investment management services to
investment funds and managed accounts.

MONEY LENDING AND PROVISION OF CREDIT
BUSINESS

The money lending and provision of credit business will continue
to be one of the major business segments of the Group and
contribute stable interest income to the Group. The Group will
further develop this business segment, diversify the customer
portfolio and seek new opportunities to cooperate with its
business partners.
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Since obtaining the money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
2014, and being acquired by the Company, Gold Smart Finance
Limited (“Gold Smart”) (formerly known as Huge Rich Finance
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
provided a wide variety of loans with an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$287,000,000 (2016: HK$209,000,000). Interest
rates ranged from 8%-24% per annum during the current year
(2016: 12%-24% per annum). For the year ended 30 June 2017,
the interest income recorded by Gold Smart was approximately
HK$14,680,000 (2016: HK$4,246,000) and there was no reversal
of impairment (2016: Nil) on the loan receivables. Details on the
loan receivables are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

The Board believes that the money lending industry will provide
the Group an opportunity to obtain a higher return under the
current low interest rate environment and will generate satisfactory
revenue for the Group. The Group is optimistic that the money
lending and advisory services business will have positive gross
profit and will generate positive cash flow from operations.

ADVISORY SERVICES

Provision of Consultancy Services and Company Secretarial
Services Business

Despite an uncertain start of 2016, the global economy has been
recovering steadily leading by the economic rebound of the United
States. Under the PRC's “One Belt One Road” strategy, we expect
more cross-border business activities to arise. The Board believes
that it will booster the demands for our provision of consultancy
services and company secretarial services in Hong Kong, which is
a bridge connecting the PRC and the world with well-established
stock exchange and financial infrastructure. As the Group has
the required resources and expertise in this aspect, the Board is
confident that its provision of consultancy services and company
secretarial services business can take advantage of this situation
and receive a stable grow in the coming years. The Group will
also consider extending its scope of services to the financial and/
or securities market by the existing money lenders’ license and/
or by acquiring the licenses to conduct the regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") in order
to fully harvest the favorable business opportunities in these areas
expected in the coming years.

Chairman’s Statement

ETE®E
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®SE

Moreover, the Group has successfully identified a group of
corporate clients and has been delivering on-going advisory
services includes provision of consultancy services and company
secretarial services. With the mission to be one of the prestigious
consultancy firms in the industry, the Group strives to help its
clients to achieve strategic goals and enhance corporate efficiency,
performance and value and to improve its prevailing performance
and position. The advisory service income is approximately
HK$26,755,000 during the year (2016: HK$27,285,000).

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Group provides investment management services to
investment funds and managed accounts. It manages funds with a
total assets under management of more than HK$2,300,000,000.
Major funds include (i) TAR Private Equity Fund L.P,; (ii) TAR Capital
Fund SPC and (iii) TAR Opportunities Fund SPC. The management
fee income recorded is HK$12,135,000 for the year (2016: Nil).

(i) TAR Private Equity Fund L.P.

TAR Private Equity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted
Limited Partnership Law, 2014 of the Cayman Islands.

The purpose of TAR Private Equity Fund L.P. is to carry on
the business of investing, holding, monitoring and realizing
investments made with the principal objective of achieving
a high rate of return through capital appreciation through
investments identified by its general partner that operate in
or derive significant business opportunities from the financial
services, natural resources and/or property investments sectors
with parameters as set out in the relevant limited partnership
agreement. The investment can be in form of equity
investments and/or debt instruments.
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(i)

(iii)

TAR Capital Fund SPC

TAR Capital Fund SPC is an exempted company with limited
liability and registered as a segregated portfolio company
in the Cayman Islands. TAR Capital Fund SPC currently
establishes a segregated portfolio called TAR Growth Fund SP.

The purpose of TAR Growth Fund SP is to achieve capital
appreciation over time, primarily through long and short
investments in stocks, futures and options contracts on global
equity and derivatives markets. TAR Growth Fund SP relies on
a structured investment process that utilises proprietary stock
screening tools, a specialised knowledge database, rigorous
company analysis through customised financial models and
strict risk management guidelines.

TAR Opportunities Fund SPC

TAR Opportunities Fund SPC is an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability and registered as a
segregated portfolio company in the Cayman Islands. TAR
Opportunities Fund SPC currently establishes three segregated
portfolios called TAR High Value Fund SP, TAR High Value Fund
SP Il 'and TAR High Value Fund SP IIl.

The purpose of TAR High Value Fund SP is to carry on the
business of investing, holding, monitoring and realizing
investments made with the principal objective of achieving
a high rate of return through capital appreciation through
investments identified by their directors that operate in or
derive significant business opportunities from the financial
services, natural resources and/or property investments
sectors. The investment can be in form of equity investments
and/or debt instruments including but not limited to
convertible or exchangeable bonds, notes and debentures.

(i)

(iii)

Chairman’s Statement

TE®E
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®SE

The purpose of TAR High Value Fund SP Il and TAR High Value
Fund SP Il is to carry on the business of investing, holding,
monitoring and realizing private debt investments made
to entities identified by the directors, which are engaged
in financial services, natural resources and/or property
investment and development, with the objective of seeking
fixed income returns with a reasonable degree of security. The
investments may be secured or unsecured and may be in the
form of loans originated by the portfolio, existing loans or
interests therein purchased by the portfolio, or may also be in
form of debt instruments including but not limited to bonds
(including convertible or exchangeable bonds), notes and
debentures.

Hong Kong is a major regional fund management centre with
a large concentration of international fund managers in Asia.
Hong Kong's fund management industry has developed a strong
expertise of investing in Asia, in particular the Chinese Mainland.
The Board believes that the market of fund management is very
large. Many investors shop around different multi-asset solutions
to meet their needs. The Company is planning to offer more
diversified investments products in the future and give more
product varieties to the market in order to attract more potential
investors.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways to
improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations into
new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the sources
of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the Company does
not rule out the possibility of investing in or changing to other
profitable business as long as it is in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Also, as part of its routine
exercise, the Company reviews the performance of its existing
investment portfolio and evaluating the investment potentials of
other investment opportunities available to the Company from
time to time. Subject to the results of such reviews, the Company
may make suitable investment decisions according to the then
circumstance and information available which may involve the
disposal of the whole or part of its existing investment portfolio
and/or change of the asset allocation of its investment portfolio
and/or expanding its investment portfolio with a view of realising
and/or optimizing the expected return and minimising the risks.
Meanwhile, the Company does not preclude the possibility that
the Company may implement debt and/or equity fund raising
plan(s) to satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business
development of the Group as well as to improve its financial
position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities
arise, as the Company has from time to time been approached by
investors for potential investment projects.

We are very grateful to have a strong and dedicated force of
finance business, especially of fund management. We would like to
express our heartfelt gratitude to all staff for their dedication and
outstanding performance and to our shareholders, customers and
suppliers for their loyalty and support.

By order of the Board
Combest Holdings Limited
Liu Tin Lap

Chairman

29 September 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENW®R DM

The following sections provide a detailed review and analysis of the
results and segmental performance of the Group for the financial
year ended 30 June 2017.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

We are principally engaged in three business segments, namely (i)
money lending represent provision of credits, (ii) advisory services
include provision of consultancy services and company secretarial
services, and (iii) investment management services to investment
funds and managed accounts. The current status of our business
segments is shown as follows:

Continuing Operations

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$53,570,000 (2016: HK$31,531,000) representing an increase
of 69.9% as compared to that in previous year. The newly acquired
investment management business contributed approximately
HK$12,135,000 and the money lending and advisory business
contributed approximately HK$14,680,000 and HK$26,755,000
respectively (2016: HK$4,246,000 and HK$27,285,000). The
turnover of money lending business is increased because of the
increased interest income.

The staff costs for the year were approximately HK$3,140,000
(2016: HK$3,790,000), representing a decrease of approximately
17.2% as the number of staff is dropped.

The other operating expenses for the year are approximately
HK$10,109,000 (2016: HK$1,942,000),
of approximately 420.5%.

representing an increase
The increase is due to the increase
in other operating expenses incurred from the newly acquired
investment management services.

The Group recorded approximately HK$24,958,000 non-capitalized
finance costs during the year. (2016: HK$3,609,000)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Discontinued Operations

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$41,023,000
(2016: loss of approximately HK$101,599,000) because a disposal
gain of approximately HK$48,884,000 was recorded from the
disposal of the Diamond Globe Group.

Profit for the Year

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax from continuing operation of
approximately HK$15,363,000 for the year ended 30 June 2017,
compared to approximately HK$22,190,000 in previous year.

In line with the decrease in taxable profits, income tax expenses
decreased to approximately HK$1,401,000 for the year ended 30
June 2017 from approximately HK$5,124,000 in previous year.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax after
including the profit from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$54,985,000 for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$84,533,000).

Accounts Receivables

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's accounts receivables amounted
to approximately HK$25,523,000, compared to approximately
HK$3,345,000 as at 30 June 2016. The increase was mainly due
to the addition of management fee income generated by the fund
management business acquired in April 2017. Since the balances
were considered fully recoverable, no impairment provision was
required.

Loan Receivables

As at 30 June 2017, the loan receivables amounted to
approximately HK$234,000, compared to approximately
HK$213,247,000 as at 30 June 2016. The decrease was mainly
because most of the loans were settled before the year ended 30
June 2017. The loan receivables had subsequently increased to
HK$34,000,000 as at 31 August 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Prepayments and Other Receivables

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's prepayments and other
receivables amounted to approximately HK$80,277,000, compared
to approximately HK$42,865,000 as at 30 June 2016.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Reference to note 3.2 to the financial statements, the Group
generally finances its operation with internally generated cash
flow except for the revolving loans provided by the independent
third parties. As at 30 June 2017, the cash and bank balances
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$5,729,000 (2016:
HK$21,345,000). Although, there are net current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$271,448,000 (2016: net
current asset of approximately HK$37,376,000), the Company has
adequate loan facilities to support the operation.

As at 30 June 2017, the Company acted as a guarantor for one of
its subsidiaries, Amble Precious Holdings Limited, and entered into
a loan agreement for a revolving loan facility in the principal sum
of HK$450,000,000 (2016: Nil).

Charges on the Group’s Asset

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets. (2016: the shares of one of the subsidiaries, Giant Goal
Limited, was pledged to Grand Castle Limited as a collateral of
promissory notes issued in respect of the disclosable transaction
published on 4 January 2016 and the shares of one of the
subsidiaries, Gold Smart was pledged to the lender as a collateral
in order to obtain the loan for expanding the money lending
business (collectly, the “Pledge”). The Company has settled the
said promissory notes and loan in January 2017. The Pledge has
been released, reassigned and discharged completely in January
2017).

Interest-bearing Borrowings

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately HK$367,483,000 (2016: HK$180,259,000) which
were repayable within 1 year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group expresses its gearing ratio as a percentage of other
borrowings and long term debts over total assets. As at 30 June
2017, the gearing ratio as a percentage of other borrowings over
total assets was 62.8% (2016: 57.0%).

Treasury policies and capital structure

Any surplus funds derived from operating activities will be placed
in bank accounts which secures the Group's liquidity position in
meeting its daily operating needs.

Placing of shares under general mandate

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 1
December 2016. The Company placed 640,000,000 new placing
shares at a price of HK$0.1 per placing shares under the general
mandate. The placement has been completed on 16 December
2016.

The proceeds of placement has been used for re-paying
HK$70,000,000 to settle the promissory notes from the acquisition
of subsidiaries related to money lending and consultancy service
business on 6 January 2016.

Exposure to exchange rate risks

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group's principal business
from the continuing operations was transacted in HK$, and in
order to minimise the impact of fluctuations of exchange rate of
RMB against HK$ the Board had changed the functional currency
and presentation currency of the Company from RMB to HK$ this
year.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).
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Employee information

For the year ended 30 June 2017, there are around 10 staff
and the staff cost, excluding directors’ remuneration, amounted
to HK$1,863,000 (2016: HK$1,554,000) from the continuing
operations. The employee remuneration was commensurate with
individual performance and experience and subject to the periodic
review of the senior management of the Company.

In order to maintain the standard of the Group's services and for
purpose of staff development, the Group provided comprehensive
training programs for its staff.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Disposal

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
20 September 2016 and the circular dated 6 October 2016 in
relation to the disposal of subsidiaries. The Company, as vendor,
and Dream Star International Limited, which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Wang Linjia, a substantial shareholder of the Company
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to dispose of and
Dream Star International Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Linjia, a substantial shareholder of the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire all Shares of Diamond Globe
Investments Ltd., the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (the “Diamond Globe Group”) and the entire
amount due from the Diamond Globe Group to the Company at
completion of the Disposal (the “Sale Loan"”) at the Consideration
of HK$100,000,000 (the "Disposal”).
completed on 28 October 2016.

The Disposal has been
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisitions

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 April 2017. The Company and Novel Shine Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liabilities (the “Vendor”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has conditionally agreed
to sell 51% of shares of the Ultra Rich Global Limited at a
consideration of HK$170,000,000. The principal activity of the
Ultra Rich Global Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”)
is to be conducted by TAR Fund Management (Cayman) Limited
(being a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Rich Global Limited),
a fund investment manager which derives income from fund
management fees, consultancy fee, administration fee and/or
performance fee. The transactions has been completed on 12 April
2017.

Investment

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
2 May 2017. A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into the subscription agreements with the TAR Opportunities Fund
SPC, an exempted company incorporated with limited liabilities
and registered as a segregated portfolio company under Company
Law of the Cayman Islands to subscribe for the participation shares
in the funds amounting HK$140,000,000. The funds are under the
management of the Group and from which the Group earns fees
from the provision of fund management services. The subscription
has been completed on 5 May 2017.

After the disposal and acquisition of business mentioned above,
we are currently principally engaged in three business segments,
namely (i) money lending; (ii) advisory services including provision
of consultancy services and company secretarial services; and
(iii) investment management services to investment funds and
managed accounts.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as mentioned elsewhere in this report, there was no other
significant event after the reporting period up to the date of this
report.
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EEENRRDMN

BUSINESS OUTLOOK
Money Lending

Money lending represents, provision of credit, business will
continue to be one of the major business segments of the Group
and contribute stable interest income to the Group. The Group
will further develop this business segment, diversify the customer
portfolio and seek new opportunities to cooperate with its
business partners. The interest income increased by approximately
245.7% from approximately HK$4,246,000 in prior year to
approximately HK$14,680,000 in current year.

Compliance with Money Lenders Ordinance

Our Group is required to and has, at all time, strictly complied with
all relevant laws and regulations. In the opinion of our Directors, in
addition to the Listing Rules, Money Lending Ordinance (“MLO")
constituted a significant influence on our Group’s money lending
business during the year.

The MLO is the principal statute which governs the money
lending business in Hong Kong. Our money lending business
has been conducted through the subsidiaries of our Company,
Gold Smart. Since the first granting of money lenders licence to
Gold Smart, we have never received any objection from and have
never been investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders nor
the Commissioner of Police regarding the renewal of the money
lenders licence. During the year, the money lenders licence of Gold
Smart Finance Ltd. was successfully renewed on 21 November
2016, and subsequent to 20 November 2017.

To the best of our knowledge, our Group has complied with the
MLO in all material aspects, and that our Directors did not aware
of any matter that might come to their attention that our money
lenders licence would be suspended, terminated or would not be
renewed in foreseeable future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Since 1 December 2016, to combat the problem of illegal and
unreasonable fees charged to borrowers by fraudsters who claim
themselves as financial intermediaries for money lending, the Hong
Kong Government has imposed additional licensing conditions
on money lenders to (i) facilitate effective enforcement of the
statutory ban on separate fee charging by money lenders and their
connected parties; (ii) ensure better protection of privacy of the
intending borrowers; (iii) enhance transparency and disclosure; and

(iv) promote the importance of prudent borrowing.

Unlike other market players in money lending industry, we do not
place substantial reliance on financial intermediaries to refer loan
business to our Group. Further, to the best of our knowledge, our
Group has complied with these additional licensing conditions in
all material aspects, and that our Directors were not aware of any
matter that might come to their attention that our money lenders
licence would be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed
in the foreseeable future because of these additional licensing
conditions.

We have also assessed and are of the view that these new
additional licensing conditions in connection with financial
intermediaries have created minimal impact on our money
lending business. Even when financial intermediaries were to be
appointed, we would carefully and cautiously select these financial
intermediaries and we would strictly follow those requirements
under the new additional licensing conditions so that we could
provide reliable and legal loan products to our customers. Our
Group will continue to co-operate with the government and
other authorities in order to fight against such illegal financial
intermediaries and to uphold the reputation of financial
institutions and money lenders.

Last but not least, to finance our money lending business, we
shall continue to source different financial resources to maintain
our cost of funding and net interest margin at a justifiable level.
We are confident in our business diversification and expansion
and the growth of interest income and its yield that will create
sound financial results and performance for our shareholders and
stakeholders in years to come.
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Advisory Services

The Group has successfully identified a group of corporate clients
and has been delivering on-going advisory services includes
provision of consultancy services and company secretarial services.
With the mission to be one of the prestigious consultancy firms
in the industry, the Group strives to help its clients to achieve
strategic goals and enhance corporate efficiency, performance
and value and to improve its prevailing performance and position.
The advisory service income is stable and recorded approximately
HK$26,755,000 in 2017 to approximately HK$27,285,000 in
2016.

Investment Management Services

The Group has provided an investment management services to
investment funds and managed accounts. It manages funds with a
total assets under management of more than HK$2,300,000,000.
Major funds include (i) TAR Private Equity Fund L.P,; (ii) TAR Capital
Fund SPC and (iii) TAR Opportunities Fund SPC. The management
fee income recorded HK$12,135,000 for the year (2016: Nil).

(i) TAR Private Equity Fund L.P

TAR Private Equity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted
Limited Partnership Law, 2014 of the Cayman Islands.

The purpose of TAR Private Equity Fund L.P. is to carry on
the business of investing, holding, monitoring and realizing
investments made with the principal objective of achieving
a high rate of return through capital appreciation through
investments identified by its general partner that operate in
or derive significant business opportunities from the financial
services, natural resources and/or property investments sectors
with parameters as set out in the relevant limited partnership
agreement. The investment can be in form of equity
investments and/or debt instruments.
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TAR Capital Fund SPC

TAR Capital Fund SPC is an exempted company with limited
liability and registered as a segregated portfolio company
in the Cayman Islands. TAR Capital Fund SPC currently
establishes a segregated portfolio called TAR Growth Fund SP.

The purpose of TAR Growth Fund SP is to achieve capital
appreciation over time, primarily through long and short
investments in stocks, futures and options contracts on global
equity and derivatives markets. TAR Growth Fund SP relies on
a structured investment process that utilises proprietary stock
screening tools, a specialised knowledge database, rigorous
company analysis through customised financial models and
strict risk management guidelines.

TAR Opportunities Fund SPC

TAR Opportunities Fund SPC is an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability and registered as a
segregated portfolio company in the Cayman Islands. TAR
Opportunities Fund SPC currently establishes three segregated
portfolios called TAR High Value Fund SP, TAR High Value Fund
SP Il and TAR High Value Fund SP Ill.

The purpose of TAR High Value Fund SP is to carry on the
business of investing, holding, monitoring and realizing
investments made with the principal objective of achieving
a high rate of return through capital appreciation through
investments identified by its directors that operate in or derive
significant business opportunities from the financial services,
natural resources and/or property investments sectors. The
investment can be in form of equity investments and/or
debt instruments including but not limited to convertible or
exchangeable bonds, notes and debentures.
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The purpose of TAR High Value Fund SP Il and TAR High Value
Fund SP Il is to carry on the business of investing, holding,
monitoring and realizing private debt investments made
to entities identified by their directors, which are engaged
in financial services, natural resources and/or property
investment and development, with the objective of seeking
fixed income returns with a reasonable degree of security. The
investments may be secured or unsecured and may be in the
form of loans originated by the portfolio, existing loans or
interests therein purchased by the portfolio, or may also be in
form of debt instruments including but not limited to bonds
(including convertible or exchangeable bonds), notes and
debentures.

Conclusion

The Board believes that the money lending industry will provide
the Group an opportunity to obtain a higher return under the
current low interest rate environment and will generate satisfactory
revenue for the Group. The Group is optimistic that the money
lending and advisory services business will have positive gross
profit and will generate positive cash flow from operations.

Hong Kong is a major regional fund management centre with
a large concentration of international fund managers in Asia.
Hong Kong's fund management industry has developed a strong
expertise of investing in Asia, in particular the Chinese Mainland.
The Board believes that the market of fund management is very
large. Many and many investors shop around the different multi-
asset solutions to meet their needs. The Company are planning
to offer more diversified investments products in the future and
give more different products in the market in order to attract more
potential investors.
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Directors, Senior Management and Staff

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Tin Lap, aged 34, has over 9 years of experience in the fields
of accounting and auditing of listed companies in Hong Kong. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Liu has been a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2010.

Mr. Lee Man To, aged 44, is an executive Director, the financial
controller, qualified accountant and company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee joined the Group in June 2008. Mr. Lee is
responsible for the overall financial control, accounting and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 19
years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee
graduated in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Bachelor
degree in accountancy in 1995. Mr. Lee is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lee acts as an independent non-executive
director of Sino Harbour Property Group Ltd. in July 2011.
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Directors, Senior Management and Staff

EE SHREEERET

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny, aged 52, is a partner and founder
of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chan has over twenty five years experience in accounting,
taxation, auditing and corporate finance and was involved in
several merger and acquisition and initial public offering projects.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the
University of New South Wales and is a member of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand, The Association of
International Accountants, CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan served as the President of the Association
of International Accountants — Hong Kong Branch in the year
2012-2015. He also serves on several tribunals of the HKSAR
Government which includes the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Appeal Board, Occupational Retirement Schemes Appeal
Board and the Tsuen Wan District Fight Crime Committee. Mr,
Chan served as the District Governor of Lions Clubs International
District 303 — Hong Kong & Macao, China in the year 2009/2010.
He is an independent non-executive director of each of TSC
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 206), Convoy Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019) and Minsheng Education
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1569) and Zhongyuan Bank
Company Limited (stock code: 1216), each of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of WLS Holdings Ltd and Sing
On Holdings Limited (stock code: 8352), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Senior Management and Staff

Mr. Nguyen, Van Tu Peter, age 73, is a senior counsel and was
called to the Bar in England by the Honourable Society of the
Middle Temple in 1970. He was an assistant crown counsel and
crown counsel in the Legal Department of Hong Kong during the
period from August 1970 to November 1974 and after leaving
Government service was in private practice as a Barrister in Hong
Kong for approximately twenty years. Mr. Nguyen was appointed
as Director of Public Prosecutions in the Legal Department of
Hong Kong during the period from July 1994 to October 1997
and he was the first Chinese to hold such position. Mr. Nguyen
was appointed as a Queen’s Counsel in 1995 and was a Judge
of the Court of First Instance of the High Court, Hong Kong
from February 1998 to April 2009. Mr. Nguyen has obtained the
approval from the relevant department of the Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China for his appointment as an independent non-executive
Director. Currently, Mr. Nguyen is an independent non-executive
director of Goldlion Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange with the stock code: 533),
Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Ltd (a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange with the stock code:
923), Greenheart Group Limited (a company listed on the main
board of the stock exchange with the stock code: 94) and Pacific
Andes International Holdings Ltd (a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange with the stock code: 1174).

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho, aged 46, obtained a Bachelor of Science in
Building, and a Master degree in Urban Design from the University
of Hong Kong. He has over 25 years’ experience in property
development, property investment, valuation and corporate
finance. Among others, Dr. Cheng is a Fellow of: Institute of Public
Accountants, The Royal Society of Medicine, The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, The Society of Operations Engineers, and Institution of
Plant Engineers. He is also a member of CPA UK, the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the
American Society of Civil Engineers and the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers. Dr. Cheng is currently an independent non-
executive director of North Mining Shares Company Limited (stock
code: 433).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are in three
business segments, (i) money lending, (ii) advisory services include
provision of consultancy services and company secretarial services,
and (iii) investment management services to investment funds and
managed accounts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a review of the business of the Group and an analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, are set out in “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 11 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 12 to 22 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year and the financial position of
the Group as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 70 to 186 of this annual report.

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment
of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017
(2016: nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2017 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") is scheduled to be
held on Tuesday, 14 November 2017. A notice convening the 2017
AGM will be issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out on page 187 to 188. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2017 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands (being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated), which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Save as mentioned elsewhere in this report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any other
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 June
2017.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively. Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to major customers and suppliers, respectively, during
the year is as follows:

TEEFRHES

RAFER BRXTEEFPRHERSERN
MARBIHERLBERENEMNT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

HAEE

BEASL

%

The largest customer BEREP 34
Five largest customers in aggregate hREFEF 67
The largest supplier BAHER 46
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHERE T 75

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major
largest customers or suppliers referred to above.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Liu Tin Lap
(re-designated from independent non-executive director
on 22 November 2016) (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man To

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho
(appointed on 22 November 2016)

Pursuant to Article 108, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr.
Lee Man To shall retire at the conclusion of the AGM and, being
eligible, offer for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Company considered all such Directors
independent.

Pursuant to Article 111, Dr. Cheng Chak Ho, the newly appointed
independent non-executive director on 22 November 2016 shall
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 25 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Tin Lap has entered into a service contract as a chairman
and an executive Director with the Company for an initial term
of one year commencing from 22 November 2016, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than one month’s notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Lee Man To has entered into a service contract as an
executive Director with the Company for an initial term of three
year commencing from 18 February 2009, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three month’s notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny was appointed as independent non-
executive Director for a term of one year expiring on 5 February
2017. He has renewed a service agreement with the Company for
a period commencing from 6 February 2017 to 5 February 2018.

Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director for an initial a term of one year expiring on 29
February 2018.

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director for an initial a term of one year expiring on 22
November 2017.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as the disclosure in note 34 to the financial statements under
the heading of “Related Party Transactions” are concerned, the
Group did not have other transactions with related parties. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, there were no transaction required
to be disclosed as connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 30 June 2017 in accordance with
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Service
Contracts” and “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above in this Directors’ Report and in
note 34 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and/or their respective
close associates has a significant interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a

party had at any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’
Report and in note 34 to the financial statements, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered by the Company or were in existence during the year.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID PERSONS

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the top five highest paid
persons are set out in note 31 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient
public float in compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) or which were
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

A. Substantial shareholders

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 30 June 2017,
the persons, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, who had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the shares were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage to

the issued
share capital
Number and of the
Name class of securities Capacity Company
EARDRE BT
wE/ AR EHHARER 227) BREBAED
Dream Star International Limited 877,685,714 Beneficial owner 22.85%
("Dream Star") (Note) ordinary shares
Dream Star International Limited 877,685,714 EmkEEA
([Dream StarJ) (A1it) AR
Kiyuhon Limited (“Kiyuhon") (Note) 877,685,714 Interest of controlled 22.85%
ordinary shares corporation
Kiyuhon Limited ([Kiyuhon 1) (#7i#) 877,685,714 ZESA RN R
Liak
Mr. Wang Linjia (“Mr. Wang”) (Note) 877,685,714 Interest of controlled 22.85%

EMELRE (DERED) (Ha)

Note:

ordinary shares
877,685,7140%
Rl

corporation
RES AR SRR

Bat -

The 877,685,714 shares are registered in the name of Dream Star, which are
wholly owned by Mr. Wang. Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested
in all the shares in which Dream Star, and Kiyuhon are interested pursuant to
the SFO.

5%877,685,7 14/ % 17 J5 LA Dream Starfy 4 & & 50
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B. Other persons whose interests are recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO

As at 30 June 2017, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company) having an interest or short position in the
shares or the underlying shares of Company representing 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 9 November 2017 to Tuesday, 14 November 2017 (both
dates inclusive). In order to determine the shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at 46/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Wednesday, 8 November
2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Principal Corporate Governance practices as adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 35 to 60 in this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Combest Holdings Limited

Liu Tin Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company complied with
the provisions set out in Appendix 15 of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practice of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (“"GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange, save as the following deviation.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be
separated and would not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEO. At present, Mr. Liu Tin Lap, being the Chairman and Chief
Executive Director of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties of
Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent
of the Group's operations, Mr. Liu is the most appropriate person
to be the Chief Executive Director because he is experienced
in management as well as mergers and acquisitions and other
key corporate matters and will be able to help the sustainable
development of the Group. Notwithstanding the above, the
Board will review the current structure from time to time. When
at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or
outside the Group, the Company may make the necessary
amendments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transaction by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry
to all the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors during the Financial Year.
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CEERRE

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No incident of non-
compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 30 June
2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All the Directors should make decision
objectively in the interests of the Company. The Board has the
full support from the chief executive director of the Company
and the senior management of the Company to discharge its
responsibilities.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive director and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board also assumes the responsibilities of maintaining high
standard of corporate governance, including, among others,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code").
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Corporate Governance Report

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board and the committees of the Company are
given below and their respective responsibilities are discussed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Tra |
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RAREAH ESCHMBATESTR=4
BYFRTESTAXN EFERARAERES
ZHKRER T MEFEEZETRNEERE

A E N o

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board of Directors Member Committee Committee Committee
Exg EEEHE ERZEEE FHEES REZEE
Executive Directors HiTEZE
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRUKE(RZZ—RF

(re-designated from independent non- +—A=-+=H

executive director on 22 November 2016) BB FMITESHE) v
Mr. Qian Shi Yu BHFLE(RZE—REF

(resigned on 22 November 2016) +—-AZ+ZBEE) v/
Mr. Lee Man To ZHERKE v
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREERE (RZZ—+F

(resigned on 12 January 2017) —A+ZHEMA) / v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRBERE v v v v/
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter EBERE v v v v/
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BERET (RZT—~F

(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—A-t+-HEZHF) v v " v
All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, PEEE (AEBYIFRTES ) UAESTS

have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective delivery of the Board functions. Independent non-
executive Directors and Non-executive Directors are invited to serve

TREETFRCEELHLR MELEX
EESRNERETEES 2B - B IFH
TEERHATESFTEREIELZES
FMEEeRRREEGIKE-

on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Directors are set

EZZERENMRERFBERNAREE

out in the "DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF” of E SAEEEKRETI]-

this report.
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A W S
TREREBBRSE

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other EZENERU B ETB  E75 - Rikk

material or relevant relationships with each other.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Company’s affairs
and operations. During the Financial Year, the Board held 4
regular Board meetings (within the meaning of the CG Code)
at approximately quarterly interval and 7 Board meetings which
were convened when board-level decisions on particular matters
were required. The Directors attended those meetings in person,
by phone or through other electronic means of communication.

HME XK -

EXEREHBRTERIMARAZEHRE
B-RUBFERN EFSCRTORERE
Feex (ERREXEARTA) NEFH
T—R URFHEEFEREZFEFEAH
TtREFECR -EFHS BBEFENEM
EFBRASALEZEFEZ RUBFEA
EERENBZHERFINIMT :

The attendance record of each member of the Board during the

Financial Year is set out below:

Attended/
Name of Directors Eligible to attend
HERE
BEEpHA EEREHERE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRIEE (RZE—REF
(re-designated from independent non- +— AT -HBEBIYNTEEADT)
executive director on 22 November 2016) 15/17
Mr. Qian Shi Yu BEFEAE (RZE—RF
(resigned on 22 November 2016) +—AZ+=-B&T) 5/17
Mr. Lee Man To FHOHRE 17/17
Non-executive Director FHHITEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREEESLEE (RZE—tF
(resigned on 12 January 2017) —A+=—ABF) 5/17
Independent Non-executive Directors BN ITESE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRI E K& 7/17
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter FrEiE % & 9/17
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BEEREL (RZT—RF
(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—RA-+-—BEZT) 5/17
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During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed
and formulated the overall strategies of the Group, reviewed and
monitored the business and financial performances and discuss the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, as well as discussed and
decided on other significant matters.

The attendance record of the general meeting of the Directors
during the Financial Year is set out below:

TtXERESE

REFEEHEZ L EFAmMAHIFTARE
ZEBERE BHMREEXBRMBERR A
LRiwZEE FFEREFRE ALBEM
EREEETHWREHIRE -

R BERE P B R REA® 2 R E B
m

Attended/
Name of Directors Eligible to attend
HERE

= EEREHFERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRIAFE(RZZE—RF

(re-designated from independent non- +— A+ -_BHHEBYIIFRTESAMT)

executive director on 22 November 2016) 1/2
Mr. Qian Shi Yu BAIFLEE (RZT—RF

(resigned on 22 November 2016) +—A -+ -BEI) 0/2
Mr. Lee Man To FHUESL A 2/2
Non-executive Director FHMITEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREERE (RZT—tF

(resigned on 12 January 2017) — A+ Z—A&F) 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHTESE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny PRZR 48 4 2/2
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter FrEE kA& 1/2
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho EEsxEt (R —XF

(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—RAZ-+=-REZT) 0/2
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHRAR

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be
separate and would not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

RAFIHMAREMNEA2 MG - RIBGEERT
Al FRIMEXEA 216 TERITRAEED
AERERY W TEH - ARKRE-TE
RITBBBRZHEBEND TRBREFTEILIA
Em5IE -
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The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEO. At present, Mr. Liu Tin Lap, being the Chairman and Chief
Executive Director of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties of
Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent
of the Group’s operations, Mr. Liu is the most appropriate person
to be the Chief Executive Director because he is experienced
in management as well as mergers and acquisitions and other
key corporate matters and will be able to help the sustainable
development of the Group. Notwithstanding the above, the
Board will review the current structure from time to time. When
at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or
outside the Group, the Company may make the necessary
amendments.

Code Provision A.6.7

This code provision stipulated that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. All independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors of the Company was present from the last
annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 November
2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had at least three independent non-executive
Directors at all times during the Financial Year. Except the
following explanation, each of the independent non-executive
Director has confirmed his annual confirmation on independence
as required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all such Directors to be independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles, (i) all Directors will be subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years and the new
Directors appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy during
the year shall be subject to re-election by the shareholders
of the Company at the next following general meeting after
appointment; and (ii) one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to one-third but not less than one-third), shall
retire from office by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at each annual general meeting and that any new
Director appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office
until the next following general meeting after appointment, and
he or she shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Details of the information of the
retiring Directors standing for re-election are set out in the circular
accompany the notice of the annual general meeting.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors of the
Company. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Continuing
briefings and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code with
effect from 1 April 2012 and until the financial year ended 30
June 2017, all relevant Directors had participated in continuous
professional development in the following manner:

REE T —_FOA-BEEMZIEEE
BTRIZFRIGNEASKEEERE T
—tFERNA=THLEIRFERL  =REH
EZNCBUATTA2ESESXER:

Reading
materials
relevant to

Directors’
duties and
Name of Director responsibilities
FEEH
EESRBER
EEpnE BREZER
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRIEE (RZE—REF
(re-designated from independent non- +— AT -HAEBIYNTESADT)
executive director on 22 November 2016) v
Mr. Qian Shi Yu HAFLEE (RZE—RF
(resigned on 22 November 2016) +—AZ+=-B&T)
Mr. Lee Man To FHUBSL A
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREEELEE (RZE—tF
(resigned on 12 January 2017) — AT ZHET) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BN ITESE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRI E K&
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter F 52 38 5% A4 v
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BEEREL (RZT—RF
(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—A-+-BEZEHE) v
AUDIT COMMITTEE ERERS
The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit RBEIZER ETRANCHATE  ARRIBKIE
Committee”) with revised written terms of reference adopted BZEg ([EZZE®]) YR —=F

on 26 March 2012 in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
In accordance with provisions set out in the CG Code which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Currently, the Audit Committee has three members comprising

three independent non-executive Directors; and namely, Mr. Chan

Ngai Sang, Kenny (the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Nguyen Van Tu Peter and Dr. Cheng Chak Ho.

The principle duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, consider
the external auditors’ proposed audit fees, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the Audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
external auditor includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on where action or improvement is
needed,;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and the annual report and accounts, half-year report,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group;
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(9)

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(vii) the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
transaction and the impact of such transaction on the
profitability of the Group;

(viii) whether all relevant items have been adequately
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements and
whether the disclosure gives a true and fair view of the
Group's financial conditions; and

(ix) the cashflow position of the Group;

to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the reports and accounts and should
give due consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function, compliance officer or auditors;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
limited review and final audits, and any matters the auditors
may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where
necessary);

to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
review the financial information of the Group, oversee the
Group's financial controls, internal control procedures and risk
management systems;
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to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control system. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

to (where an internal audit function exists) review the
internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director, manager,
financial controller or internal credit control manager upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the Board and to
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

to consider the Board’'s recommendation of the appointment
of any person to be an Audit Committee member, a company
secretary, auditors and accounting staff either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Audit Committee member,
company secretary, auditors and accounting staff or the
Board’s recommendation for the dismissal of any of them;
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to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up actions;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

During the Financial Year under review, the Audit Committee held

four meetings to consider and approve the following:

(i)

(ii)

to review of the quarterly, half-year and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board, with a focus on
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules
and other requirements in relation to financial reporting of
the Audit Committee;

to discuss the effectiveness of the internal controls system

throughout the Group, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management;
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(iii) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters; and

(iv) to discuss the whistleblowing policy throughout the Group.

The individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is as follows:
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Attended/
Name of Directors Eligible to attend
HERE
BEEnA EEBHERE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRI E K& 4/4
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter FrEiE f & 4/4
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BEEREL (RZT—RF
(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—AZ+_REEE) 2/4
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREERE (RZT—tF
(resigned on 12 January 2017) — A+ =—A8F) 2/4
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRIEE (RZE—REF
(re-designated to executive director +—AZ+-—BEFATAHTES)
on 22 November 2016) 2/4

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited results for
the Financial Year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment of the external auditors
during the Financial Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 1 July 2005 with revised written
terms of reference adopted on 26 March 2012 which deal clearly
with its authority and duties, in accordance with the requirement
of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Currently, the Remuneration Committee has three members

comprising three independent non-executive Directors; and

namely, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee), Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter and Dr.
Cheng Chak Ho.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and Senior Management
(as defined below) remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives from time to time;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and Senior Management (as defined below) for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee

to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board;
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to have the delegated responsibility from the Board either to
determine the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and Senior Management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; or to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management; and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors, and
also review and make recommendations on the Company’s
share option scheme and other compensation-related issues.
The Remuneration Committee should consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the group;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

to determine the criteria for assessing employee performance,
which should reflect the Company’s business objectives and
targets;

to consider the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors, Senior Management and the general staff, having
regard to their achievements against the performance
criteria and by reference to market norms, and make
recommendation to the Board;

to engage external professional advisers to advise the
Remuneration Committee on issues as the Remuneration
Committee considers necessary;

to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors and
have access to independent professional advice if considered
necessary; and

to report to the Board the findings and recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee at the next meeting of the
Board following each Committee Meeting.
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During the Financial Year under review, the Remuneration
Committee held two physical meeting. The individual attendance
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee is as
follows:

REEMIREEA - HE 8 g 82TmRER
BEE - SFWNEE SN E 2 @A HE i
T

Attended/

Name of Director Eligible to attend

HERE,

BEEnA EEREHERE

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny PRI E R A& 1/1

Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter FrEiE f & 11
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BEEREL (RZT—RF

(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—RA-+-—BEZT) 0/1
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREERE (RZT—tF

(resigned on 12 January 2017) — A+ =—A8F) 1/1

Mr. Liu Tin Lap
(re-designated to executive director
on 22 November 2016)

The summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee
included:

(i) to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal
system,;

(i) to consider and approve the grant of share options to
Directors and senior management;

(iii) to recommend to the Board the Directors’ fee for the Financial
Year; and

(iv) to consider and approve the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) in March 2012 with written terms of
reference adopted on 26 March 2012 which deal clearly with its
authority and duties, in accordance with the requirement of the
CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG Code
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Currently the Nomination Committee has three members
comprising the three independent non-executive Directors; and
namely, Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter (the chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and Dr. Cheng Chak Ho.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy, and consider and advise the Board as to
any changes that may be required to achieve a balanced and
appropriate qualified board and the independence of any
present or proposed independent non-executive Directors;

(b) to develop plans for orderly succession for appointments to
the Board and other senior positions, and will search for,
consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive;

(c) to re-appointment of any independent non-executive Director
at the conclusion of his or her specified term of office;

(d) any matters relating to the continuation in office as a Director
or any Director at any time;
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to prepare suitable job descriptions and letter of appointment
in relation to the Board and, if appropriate, chairmanship and
membership of board committees;

to make a statement in the Company’s annual report and
accounts detailing its activities and the process it has used to
make any recommendations in respect of appointments to the
Board;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

to report to the Directors its activities as the Directors may
require from time to time.

During the Financial Year under review, the Nomination Committee

held one physical meeting. The individual attendance record of

each member of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

(i)

HegEeM(WAB)EEZEENT
FERAMKERML GHRaENBLE
MAMEEE:

EARRDA R FERMER B B EDBR 7
AMFRAETHE URSHHTPRESS
RTERIRRANRRE:

MERERETESEKREMAZE Wik
BRZETEENHAEED (FHEE
HHHEMHENEEEHRTER:

AHEBM FFRITE R ILIE: &

GRERTHENER AEFERLT
o

REESHFEER  RRZBEHRTRRG
R -RALBEEEKEMNEALFERLEN

T

Attended/
Name of Director Eligible to attend
HERE,
BEEnA EERHERE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRI E K& 2/2
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter FrEiE % & 2/2
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho BEEREL (RZT—RF
(appointed on 22 November 2016) +—A-+-—BEZT) 0/2
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREERE (RZT—tF
(resigned on 12 January 2017) — A+ Z—AEF) 2/2
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRIEE (RZE—REF
(re-designated to executive director +—AZ+-_BEFATAHTES)
on 22 November 2016) 0/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board will therefore be responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2017, the Board has
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and established the Nomination Committee in March
2012.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company established a shareholders’ communication policy
and review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The Company communicates with the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) and the potential investors (the “Investors”) of

the Company mainly in the following ways:

(i) the holding of annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings, if any, which may be convened for specific
purpose and provide opportunities for the Shareholders and
Investors to communicate directly with the Board;

(i) the publication of quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports,
announcements and/or circulars as required under the GEM
Listing Rules and/or press releases of the Company providing
updated information of the Group; and

(iii) the latest information of the Group will be available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The notice of annual general meetings and any extraordinary
general meetings at which the passing a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by not less than 21 clear days’ notice
prior to the date of meetings. All other extraordinary general
meetings maybe called by not less than 14 clear days’ notice prior
to the date of meetings.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles (as

amended from time to time), and the applicable legislation and

regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from

time to time):

(i)

(if)

(iii)

any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”)
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such

requisition;

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Flat M-N, 24/F, Houston Industrial Building, 32-40 Wang
Lung Street, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong, or Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, 46/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board and/or the Company Secretary;

the Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding,
the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and must
be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned together
with a deposit of a sum of money reasonable sufficient to
meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders;
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(iv) the Requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, the
Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all the
registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the Requisition
has been verified as not in order or the Shareholders
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet
the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM; and

(v) If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
Requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Flat M-N, 24/F, Houston
Industrial Building, 32-40 Wang Lung Street, Tsuen Wan, N.T,
Hong Kong, or Hong Kong branch share registrar by post or by
fax to (852) 8202 0633 for the attention of the Board and/or the
Company Secretary.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong
Kong have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have
been used and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements. The auditors’ responsibilities are set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. He supports the chairman, Board and
board committees by ensuring good information flow and reports
to the Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively and
efficiently. The company secretary also advices the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of directors. All directors of the Company may call
upon him for advice and assistance at any time in respect to
their duties and the effective operation of the Board and board
committee.

Mr. Lee Man To has been the company secretary of the Company
since June 2008. He is also the executive director, the authorised
representative and the financial controller of the Company.
The biographical detail of Mr. Lee is set out in the section of
"Directors, Senior Management and Staff” on page 23 to 25 of
this report. During the year, Mr. Lee undertook not less than 20
hours of relevant professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavors to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures.

During the year, the Company has adopted and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
procedures which include the policies, procedures, monitoring and
communication activities and standard of behaviour established
for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company aim to help achieving the Group’s business objectives,
safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information. However, the design of
the systems are to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure
when business objectives are being sought.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

e Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment

e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e  Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.
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Risk Response

e  Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e  Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness during the year.

The Company has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited as its risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 30 June 2017. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of
review was previously determined and approved by the Board. The
Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement to the
Audit Committee and management of the Company. The Board
and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the
Adviser will be properly followed up by the Group to ensure that
they are implemented within a reasonable period of time.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has a policy to assess the likely impact of any
unexpected and significant event that may impact the price of the
Shares or their trading volume and to decide whether the relevant
information is considered as inside information that needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.

Based on its assessment which covers all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, the Board believes that for the year
ended 30 June 2017, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems are effective and adequate. The Board
is satisfied that there are adequate resources of staff with
appropriate qualifications and experience in its accounting and
financial reporting team and that sufficient training and budget
have been provided.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in
the executive of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto,
the Company has arrange insurance cover for this purpose.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Company has adequate resources to continue its operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

According to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, an issuer
must disclose Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide ("ESG") information on an annual basis and regarding
the same period covered in its annual report. An ESG report may
be presented as information in the issuer’s annual report, in a
separate report, or on the issuer’'s website. As this is the first ESG
report of the Company, the Company need more time to prepare.
The ESG report is expected to be published on the Exchange's
website and the Company’s website no later than three months
after the annual report has been published.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITOR

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Audit Committee of the
Company had reviewed the performance of BDO Limited as the
external auditor of the Company and proposed to re-appoint
BDO Limited as the external auditor. For the year ended 30 June
2017, the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 30 June 2017 amounted approximately to HK$800,000
and HK$80,000 respectively. An analysis of the remuneration paid
to the external auditors of the Group is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Updated and
key information of the Group is also available on the Company’s
website. The Company also replied the enquires from shareholders
timely. The Directors host the annual general meeting each year to
meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the Financial Year, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee were revised in accordance to the amendments of the
GEM Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2012 and 1 April
2012, respectively. The revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

|IBDO

E:E : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Combest
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 186, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

(Refer to notes 4.8, 5(iv) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had available-for-sale investments
amounting to approximately HK$242,107,000 representing
unlisted fund investments which are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We identified the impairment of available-for-sale investments as
a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the impairment assessment
performed by the management involves a significant judgement
and estimates in determining the recoverability of the available-for-
sale investments.

Our responses:

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of the available-for-
sale investments included:

e obtaining an understanding of impairment assessment
procedures carried out by the management of the Group;

e assessing any indication of impairment of the available-for-
sale investments identified, and whether impairment provision
is required; and

e  conducting discussions with the management of the Group
and the fund manager of the unlisted fund investments
to understand the details of investment portfolios held by
the funds, the control and procedures adopted by the fund
managers to assess the credit risk of the funds’ investment
portfolios.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

(Refer to notes 4.7, 5(iii) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group has carrying amount of goodwill amounting to
approximately HK$167,778,000 and HK$62,740,000 in the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 30 June 2017
arising from fund management segment and advisory service
segment respectively.
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The management has performed an annual impairment test in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies and concluded
that there is no impairment in respect of the goodwill. This
calculation was based on value-in-use calculations.

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because the value-in-use calculations involve significant
management judgement and estimates with respect to the
underlying cash flows, in particular the average revenue growth
rates and discount rates.

Our responses:

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of the goodwill included:

e considering the historical accuracy of management'’s
budgeting, if applicable;

e evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent valuer appointed by the Group;

e  conducting discussions with the management of the Group
and the independent valuer about the cash flow projections
used in the value-in-use calculations and assessing the
appropriateness of the significant assumptions and critical
judgement areas which affect the value-in-use calculations;
and

e benchmarking the revenue growth rates and discount rates

used in the value-in-use calculations against industry data and
comparable companies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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e  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate No. P05412

Hong Kong, 29 September 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWSE R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt it TER FAT
(Restated)
(feE7))
Continuing operations BEREXRY
Revenue YA 6 53,570 31,531
Staff costs 8 TR (3,140) (3,790)
Other operating expenses Higamz (10,109) (1,942)
Finance costs B KA 9 (24,958) (3,609)
Profit before income tax HBR P15 T AT 3 ) 8 15,363 22,190
Income tax expenses FriS®if & 10 (1,401) (5,124)
Profit for the year from REFESEEK
continuing operations FERA 13,962 17,066
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year from KEDRIEREEBR 2
discontinued operations BN FERF
(E18) 12 41,023 (101,599)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FE®RA(EBER) 54,985 (84,533)
Other comprehensive income, Hit2EKE RBE
net of tax
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —AJRE (£ E#H 5 IE 2
to profit or loss: HEmzIEE -
Exchange loss on translation of financial BMEBINEE I WK
statements of foreign operations i 18 (3.347) (14,518)
Release of exchange reserve upon & B B R B B R BR
disposal of subsidiaries e X (30,569) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEEM2mEIzE K%
net of tax (33,916) (14,518)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEHKEETE
for the year 21,069 (99,051)
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W &= &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t FHERT T T
(Restated)
(feE7))
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year UTATEESRR FE
attributable to: wmA(EE) ¢
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A
Profit for the year from REBELEEL .
continuing operations F S5 7 11,911 17,066
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year from REERIEREEBZ
discontinued operations N, FERFN
(B#E) 41,184 (101,386)
53,095 (84,320)
Non-controlling interests IR =
Profit for the year from REBELEEL .
continuing operations F[Z i A 2,051 -
Loss for the period/year from REERIEREEBZ
discontinued operations HRN,FEEE (161) (213)
1,890 (213)
54,985 (84,533)
Total comprehensive income DTALTE&GZE
attributable to: Wiz 4858 -
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE ¥ =N 19,209 (98,573)
Non-controlling interests JEPE R = 1,860 (478)
21,069 (99,051)
Earning/(Loss) per share for AARHEEAEN
profit/(loss) attributable to AL (R 2
owners of the Company SREF,(FE) 13
From continuing and KEFEK
discontinued operations BRI E R
- Basic (HK cent(s)) — 2R B 1.45 (2.50)
— Diluted (HK cent(s)) —#5E (B 1.45 (2.50)
From continuing operations REFBEEEET
— Basic (HK cent(s)) —E AR GBI 0.32 0.51
- Diluted (HK cent(s)) —#58 OB 0.32 0.51
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e U BRI R

As at 30 June 2017 R =-F—+FNA=+H

30 June 30 June 1 July
2017 2016 2015
—E2—+tF | ZT-RF ZT-A8F
~NA=+H ~NA=TH +H—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FTHERT FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
¢ == (&=E75))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE BB REE 14 - 2,706 2,705
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 15 242,107 - -
Intangible assets BREE 16 1,093 22,967 138,130
Goodwill S 17 230,518 62,740 -
473,718 88,413 140,835
Current assets RBEE
Financial asset through profit or loss SABRZERERE 32() - - -
Inventories FE 18 - 64,157 56,639
Accounts receivables U BR K 19 25,523 3,345 4,873
Loan receivables A g= 20 234 213,247 -
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRE Eek
other receivables H b UL SRR 80,277 42,865 63,972
Cash and cash equivalents RekBaeFEY 21 5,729 21,345 32,854
111,763 344,959 158,338
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payables JFE 15 B 3K 22 10,712 12,746 8,092
Other payables, deposits and accruals HiEARE ek
[EETBE 1,193 37,161 31,108
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 23 367,483 180,259 -
Promissory notes A EE 24 - 66,649 -
Provision for product warranty iR 2B A 25 - 427 466
Tax payables JEfTEIIE 3,823 10,341 5,426
383,211 307,583 45,092
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(8E) EEFE (271,448) 37,376 113,246
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 202,270 125,789 254,081
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e U HRR R

As at 30 June 2017 R-ZF—+FNNH=+H

30 June 30 June 1 July
2017 2016 2015
—E—tF —E—RF “E—FF
AA=1+H ~A=+H +H—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et FART FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(IEE75)) (IEE75))
Non-current liabilities E(REBEAE
Provision for product warranty E i R 78 A 25 - 220 371
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE 35 - 5,442 34,532
- 5,662 34,903
Net assets EEFHE 202,270 120,127 219,178
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of KRR ANEHERS
the Company
Share capital AR 26 38,415 32,015 32,015
Reserves [ 27 159,670 84,486 183,059
198,085 116,501 215,074
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,185 3,626 4,104
Total equity wmER 202,270 120,127 219,178

FIOEI18AZHFAMBHRIEESTEN =
T—tFNAZTNABIERKETE I h
TIATREREZTERSR:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 186 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
September 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Tin Lap Lee Man To
B X =808
Director Director

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REHRERE R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t FERT FAT
(Restated)
(eE3)
Cash flows from operating activities REKEEBNRESRE
Profit/(Loss) before income tax expenses MBI ATER
(E#8E)
— From continuing operations - REBELEER 15,363 22,190
— From discontinued operations —REDRIEELER 41,023 (128,533)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 109 6,592
Depreciation of property, W WEREETE
plant and equipment 322 535
Interest income FEWA - (61)
Impairment of property, W B REERE
plant and equipment - 1,235
Interest expenses FERE 9 24,958 3,609
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B B A B M (48,884) -
Addition on provision for product R 58 R 3 0
warranty - 101
Impairment of intangible assets mIEERE - 99,135
Write-down on inventories FEME - 12,630
Operating profit before HEEREHANLERT
working capital changes 32,891 17,433
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERL,/ (#hn) 5,936 (20,148)
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivables FEULBE X (38 h0) R4 (15,768) 1,528
Decrease/(Increase) in loan receivables FEULE FOm A, (18n) 213,013 (213,247)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments, TEMRIE e kA
deposits and other receivables FE W R IE (3 n) R (48,644) 23,657
Increase in account payables JE <F BR BRI 0 6,621 4,654
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables, HtENARIE ek
deposits and accruals FEEtER CRd) /1 m (14,588) 5,626
Decrease in provision for product warranty —Z 5 (R 2 5 & R 2 - (291)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & 25115,/
(FrA)RZ 179,461 (180,788)
Bank interest received B UERITH] B - 61
Income taxes paid B TEH (5,739) (5,621)
Net cash generated from/(used in) AR REFETR
operating activities (FTH)BEL/FE 173,722 (186,348)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HREHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t FHERT T T
(Restated)
(feE7))
Cash flows from investing activities REREXEKNEERE
Purchases of property, BEWE BRERE®
plant and equipment - (1,906)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BEAIHEHERE
investments (142,107) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising EBREHMELENIRS
from business combination FORE)REA 32 (169,865) 3,764
Net cash inflows from HEMBARFEEN
disposal of subsidiaries BeFmA 12 68,358 -
Purchase of net assets, BEEETE
net of cash acquired OB PT U EE IR & 33 (1,312) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from R EEE) (BTA)FT iz
investing activities B HEE (244,926) 1,858
Cash flows from financing activities METHABRERA
Proceeds from placing of shares Be & % 19 FT 15 500R 26 62,375 -
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings EETBEE (180,259) -
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings K Bt BEEH T8 7K1AE 280,083 180,259
Redemption of promissory notes HE Bl H, B IR 24 (70,000) -
Interest paid 2B (34,194) -
Net cash generated from BE T T2 FEE
financing activities 58,005 180,259
Net decrease in cash and ReRkRESEEY
cash equivalents WA EE (13,199) (4,231)
Cash and cash equivalents FURERESEEY
at the beginning of year 21,345 32,854
Effect of foreign exchange EXEHNTE FHE
rate changes, net (2,417) (7,278)
Cash and cash equivalents FREASRBESEEY
at the end of year 5,729 21,345
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESEEDEHRIMW
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 5,729 21,345
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERERBE K

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAREER
Non-
Share Share Statutory Exchange  Accumulated Sub-  controlling Total
capital premium* reserves* reserve* losses* total interests equity
BA& RGEE EERE B 2R Nt FBRER #ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TER TER TR
(note 26) (note 27)
(Hit2e) (Wit27)
Balance at 1 July 2016, RZB-REtE-BHESR
as restated (BE5)) 32,015 458,371 9,482 33,914 (417,281) 116,501 3,626 120,127
Profit for the year FERT - - - - 53,095 53,095 1,890 54,985
Other comprehensive income Hit2E W
Item that may be reclassified HREFETHEZE
subsequently to profit or foss: BEal%E -
~ Exchange loss on translation ~REBNEBHBREN
of finandial statements of EiEE
foreign operations - - - (3317) - (3317) (30) (3,347)
Release of exchange reserve upon ~ HEMNBARREREL
disposal of subsidiaries & (Hzt12())
(note 12(c)) - - - (30,569) - (30,569) - (30,569)
Total comprehensive income FE2HUELE
for the year - - - (33,886) 53,095 19,209 1,860 21,069
Issue of shares upon share placing, ~ REHEERETRR
net of share placing expenses NRRHEER®
(note 26) (Hii26) 6,400 55,975 - - - 62,375 - 62,375
Non-controlling interests arising on ~ £H A HE£ 2 FERES
business combination (note 32()  (Hi#320)) - - - - - - 2,134 2,134
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 12(c) ~ HEWBAT (HE12()) - . (9,482) - 9,482 - (3,435) (3,435)
Transactions with owners HEEARS 6,400 55,975 (9,482) - 9,482 62,375 (1,301) 61,074
Balance at 30 June 2017 R-E-tEXA=THZES 38,415 514,346 - 28 (354,704) 198,085 4,185 202,270
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERERE B X

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FREEBAELER
Non-
Share Share Statutory Exchange  Accumulated Sub- controlling Total
capital premium* reserves* reserve® losses* total interests equity
RA& BRI EE R R 2ERE* PEt FERER b 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn Ti#n TR TiEn TiEn TR
(note 26) (note 27)
(Hit26) (H#27)
Balance at 1 July 2015, RZB-EFLA-AZEH
as restated (BE5]) 32,015 458,371 9,482 48,167 (332,961) 215,074 4,104 219,178
Loss for the year, as restated FERR(KE5) - - - - (84,320) (84,320) (213) (84,533)
Other comprehensive income, Hip2EhE (BE5)
as restated
Item that may be reclassified IREEZHAEZ
subsequently to profit or loss, BaZBH (£E7)) -
as restated:
- Exchange loss on translation —HEENEBUBRRN
of financial statements of B EE (585])
foreign operations,
as restated - - - (14,253) - (14,253) (265) (14,518)
Total comprehensive income FEXENREE (BE)
for the year, as restated - - - (14,253) (84,320 (98,573) (478) (99,051)
Balance at 30 June 2016, R=B-RERAZTAZER
as restated (BE5]) 32,015 458,371 9,482 33914 (417,281) 116,501 3,626 120,127
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately * REREBEREBOESEAMERIRANGE HE

HK$159,670,000 (2016: HK$84,486,000 (restated)) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

#1159,670,00078 7T ( —F — /X4 : 84,486,000/% 7T
(&s5))) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Combest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 28 August
2001 and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is Flat M-N, 24/F, Houston
Industrial Building, 32-40 Wang Lung Street, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group” hereafter.

On 28 October 2016, the Company disposed of the entire
interest of a subsidiary, Diamond Globe Investments Limited,
together with its subsidiaries (the “Diamond Globe Group”),
which composed of functional healthcare business and OEM
consumer electronics business to Dream Star International
Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Linjia, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, details are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 12 April 2017, the Group acquired 51% equity interests
of Ultra Rich Global Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with
limited liability, together with its subsidiaries (the “Ultra
Group”) from an independent third party, details are set out in
note 32(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the disposal of subsidiaries and the acquisition

of subsidiaries as described above, there were no significant
changes in the Group's operation during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R EBMBREER ([FEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BimREER])

2.1 Adoption of new/amended HKFRSs - first effective 2.1 BT REITEBMBEREE

on 1 July 2016

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new/amended HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for
the Group's financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 July 2016:
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation

HKFRSs Amendments Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the above amendment has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

B-RZZB-AR"FLtA-BEREX
RAFER - REBEXER TS H
ARG AS ([EEEMAR
1) RMGZIETIRIERT BRI
WEE HEREER _FT—RX
FEA—BFABNFERRENMB
AR WEZARER:

BRgE BEE
Ebia 4]

EiB Gt A BEURXINER
FI6RRER B%
EREEIEER

ZEF]
BRMBREER BAMBHREED
ZEF] “E-2%E
“E-MERMe
FEIE

PR A8 BT AN R BN R B 2 AR
BHBHRERBREATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group for the year ended 30 June
2017.

Amendments to Disclosure initiative'
HKAS 7
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts
HKFRS 15 with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)2
HKFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEBMBREER ([FEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BREAER]) (&)

(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but 2.2 BHEMGESREMZHT BT

are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.

ERMERMEER (&)
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BZoREEMAFNIEREER
BERA (RREB ST LR FE395
ZBEEEBEBREN) ARH—RY
HERRE LNEEBRMBHRR
ARt R E R E IR B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F£E#H%% 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNHA=1HIFFZE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 (2014) retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEBMBREER ([FEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BREAER]) (&)

(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but 2.2 BHEMGESREMZHT BT

are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;
and transition requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RPWEBUBREERN ([BEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BmEER]) (£)
(Continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but 2.2 BHEMGESREMZHT BT
are not yet effective (Continued) EBMB®REED (&)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the REBERIRMA LM FET BT
impact of adopting the above new/amended HKFRSs to BEMBREENERNER 228
the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state ERFI G - AEBHARERPZSE
whether these pronouncements will result in substantial BRARERERUAEEN TN
ERIEEVBRREEETREH -

changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. REEXE
3.1 Statement of compliance 3.1 65 EH

The consolidated financial statements have been BREVMBRERDBEESSHAA
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong & bﬁfﬁZ?ﬁﬁ R&EE EM‘Q#Ei
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretation HR B LR ([BEEGEHE
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") HIJ)&%&(MT SRR
issued by the HKICPA and disclosure requirements of WEEA]) REE CRRHERD &
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the BRATHRE LI FRE B ImE
consolidated financial statement includes applicable BREBRAEIERES ETHRAR
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of TE Y3 PR # 55 ©

Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The comparative consolidated statement of AhRGEa2HREREEERS
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of MEXRUAREEENHNTERES
cash flows and their corresponding notes have been B RS LR ESHR [FELHEZ
restated in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current EMBEERDKRIELEER &
Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations” as MEWm BUOAFEERIELE 2
if operations discontinued during the current year had EBERALRBIE TAKLLE-
been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.2 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis which assumes
the realisation of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in
the ordinary course of business notwithstanding that
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$271,448,000 as at 30 June 2017. The directors
are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
resources to satisfy its working capital and other
financing requirement in the foreseeable future based on
(i) on 30 August 2017, the Group has been granted an
extension on an existing loan facility of HK$450,000,000
(HK$190,000,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2017) which
originally mature on 29 December 2017 for another one
year (note 23); and (ii) on 30 August 2017, the Group
has obtained and drawn down a new one-year loan of
HK$100,000,000 from an independent third party to
repay another existing loan of HK$100,000,000 which
was supposed to mature on 25 September 2017 (note
23). Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
for those financial asset stated at fair value, which is
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in note 4.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs and its impacts on the Group's
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of measurement (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The presentation currency of the Company in prior years
was Renminbi (“RMB"”). The directors of the Company
considered that (i) along with the disposal of Diamond
Globe Group (note 72) and acquisition of the Ultra
Group (note 32(i)), most of the Group's transactions
are denominated and settled in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"); and (ii) the change in the presentation currency
could also reduce the impact of any fluctuations in the
exchange rate of the RMB against the HK$, which is not
due to the operations and beyond the control of the
Group, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, enabling the shareholders of the Company to
have a more accurate picture of the Group's financial
performance. The change in presentation currency
of the Company has been applied retrospectively in
accordance with HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates, and Errors” and the comparative
figures as at 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016 and for the
year ended 30 June 2016 have been retranslated to HK$
and restated accordingly.

Upon the change, the functional currency and the
presentation currency of the Company is HK$, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the principal subsidiaries of the Company operates.

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

—tENAZTHIEFE

3. REEE (&)

3.2

3.3

FFEREE (F)
BIERUESEMBEHRRECER

HEERBR-BEREHED
*ETFEE%;T?.?W%#&{T@JH’JK
ERAMRHE MIEL  HEERER
RRALEZEFHEEEL A F R
%F%JI%E%?’EWE’I‘EEEI’J%EI’X‘WEE

HEHMBHRREERNNED
EMHEEST)EE@

DREREINER
RRRIRBEFEZ2IEE /A
REBE(TAREKE]) -ARAEEFR
A (VBN EDiamond Globe&
B (ffat1z) R BB R (f it
32(1)) - $‘§Ij§*ﬂ’\“%i’]uﬁ:§m
(BT EREN: R(i)E
5'J§MDTEJ/)§R/AEMR/E7EZE
MR (WIFLEBH LB
MRS EZEHIEHE w8 ) HAREE
ZEEMBREITE A RA]
BRAEEBISERNEE 2B &K
iﬁ"%ﬁﬁ/‘ﬂZa‘:’szﬁgE@ﬁ%
BA G HERESH [ SFTHE
FHAFTEESARRE] BYPER ﬂﬁ
RZE—RAFEA—ARZZT—RN
FRAZTAHURBEZZ—F
ANAZTHRALFEZAEEFTEE
B RBTRAEED -

REFEIR 7«1»‘/‘7217]@%%-?%&%
5l E"iﬁ%ﬁ/%m BT RAR
EF)TEZIE%/%K

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F£E#H%% 87

nrs |




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z—

—tFNA=ZTHIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June each year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

41 XBEHRGEEEE (H)

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are amounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z—

—tFNA=ZTHIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

92

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign subsidiary have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at closing rates. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the

gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬂﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESHHEMM (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4.4 NE - BERZE (&)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to the
profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, to
its residual values over its estimated useful lives at the
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or

estimated useful life of
5 years whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 10%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 10%-33%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 10%-25%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

94

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired (see note 4.7).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Brand names

Brand names for functional healthcare products with
indefinite useful lives were acquired and initially
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, brand names
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Franchise networks

Franchise networks for functional healthcare products,
with useful lives ranged from 2 to 10 years, were
acquired and initially recognised at cost. After initial
recognition, franchise networks are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Vehicle registration mark

Vehicle registration mark is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated losses.
It is amortised over its estimated useful life of 10 years
using the straight-line method. After initial recognition,
vehicle registration mark is carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

If there is an indication that there have been a significant
change in amortisation rate, useful life or residual value
of an intangible assets, the amortisation is revised
prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as set out as
below in note 4.7.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are subject for impairment testing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired.
All other assets are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those of other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflow independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated
to those cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from synergies of the related business
combination and represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment loss recognised for cash-generating units, to
which goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to its present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods whilst an impairment loss on
other assets is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
asset was acquired. Financial assets of the Group are
initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through the
provision of goods and services to customers (trade
debtor), and also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss consist
of financial asset held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is presented
as gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of
financial instruments held for trading line item in the
consolidated income statement. Fair value is determined
in accordance with the market bid price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

48 SREE (&)

Available-for-sale investments

These assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments. The Group designated
the unlisted fund investments of which the Group has
no power to govern or participate the financial and
operating policies of the invested entities so as to obtain
benefits from its activities, and does not intend to trade
for short-term profit as available-for-sale investments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial investments are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses, which are
recognised in profit and loss.

For available-for-sale financial investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include:

significant financial difficulty of the debtors; or

— a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— granting concession to a debtor because of debtor's
financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the debtors will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of financial
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

48 SWMEE (&)

For available-for-sale investments

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
investments has been recognised directly in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as impairment loss. That amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit of
loss.

For available-for sale investments carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and any applicable selling expenses.

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

4.11

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand. For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
payables, other payables, accruals, interest— bearing
borrowings and promissory notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs
(note 4.17).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Financial liabilities (Continued)

411 eREE(E)

Borrowings and promissory notes

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred. Borrowings and
promissory notes are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Promissory notes are classified as current
liabilities according to its repayment schedule.

Accounts payables, other payables and accruals

These balances are recognised initially at their fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

4.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
4.12 Leases (Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Operating leases — as lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

4.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

104 COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{EIEMR AR A F

4. TEGTBERBME (&)

4.12

4.13

HE (&)

HE 7 AE B &ZESDE
AEBRBEHERBLCHAER
H B AR D B & Bl R E T AR
EnEE RREARERENEE
FANEE - UESMARNBA
MoREREHRERE T AEENHE

E lREAKENRE-

HEHE—ERFABA

HMAEENELHERSCHEE
ENERE RESETHMNZIR
HEMBUNEREB Bk
fif A B E L FRM M RIRTEE &
EEFTE £ RS AR X AIBR AN o
PIESNHEBEDERAETER
REEF N AR AR D - K
RMERAEEN S HMEANER
5137 o

BENRIARAEE

BREOIRARERBSESEHFMES
REEHOCREHEE)  AEHE
MEAFREARLAEERE I
AL B AR BERE L A S A AR
ReMEENKBREEELN AEE
mEBABEFRX 2 RETK-

B A S 4R B R RT3
B R B IR RS B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

LB BRERIREE (&)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less
any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

4.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined by using the nominal value if shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium, net of any
related income tax benefit, to the extent that they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTESTTBERBME (F)
POLICIES (Continued)
4.15 Revenue recognition 4.15 WA RER
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the WA BB R SR AR EE
economic benefit will flow to the Group and the revenue MR AR SEM T E R AR TERR
can be measured reliably on the following basis: W
a. from the sales of goods when the significant risks a. HEBEYREAENEXER
and rewards of ownership have passed to the RERHEEBETEF & #
customer, provided that the Group maintains neither ROEAEENEBEBPESE
managerial involvement to the degree usually M EREENEIRENIHER
associated with ownership, nor effective control mEBERIESIE —RRED
over the goods sold. This is usually taken as the time KERBEFPEEMNEYRRE
when the goods are delivered and the customer has 7

accepted the goods;

b. services income is recognised when the service have b.  ARFUW AR AR I U e g
been rendered and the revenue can be reasonably SREMFRBER EERER
estimated. Deferred revenue is recorded as liability BEHEBHBERLERS M ARIE
when the payments have been made in advance by HmMEENRELERAE
customers for services yet to be rendered as at each A PR AR 7S I P & IR M T UK
of the reporting dates and recognised as income mRERABA &

when the services have been rendered and the
revenue can be reasonably estimated; and

c. interest income is recognised on an accrual basis . FMEWANEBRF EEZES
using the effective interest method by applying the ALEBR - MEANE AR S
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future BT BEFREAE A A B ok (3@
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial A)BE AT RRRS YK
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to RERMBESMEEREF
the net carrying amount of the financial assets. BRI H) 2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Employee benefits

(1)

Defined contribution plan

The Group has participated in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for its employees in
Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme, in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee's
basic salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for
the Group's employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

(1)

(1)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"), the subsidiaries operating in the PRC
have participated in local municipal government
retirement benefits schemes (the “Schemes”),
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of their employees to the Schemes to
fund their retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the Schemes mentioned above. Contributions under
the Schemes are charged to the profit or loss as
incurred. There are no provisions under the Schemes
whereby forfeited contributions may be used to
reduce future contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

417 EFR{LBEERAK

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.18 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can
be utilised.
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case the
taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESHHEMML (Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

418 BB 2Bt RE (&)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the entity has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and
the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either; (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and services lines.

Imputed interest on promissory notes, income tax and
corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z—

—tEFNA=ZTHIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets but the corporate
assets. Corporate assets are not directly attributable to

the business activities of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but tax payables,
deferred tax liabilities, promissory notes and corporate
liabilities. Corporate liabilities are not directly attributable

to the business activities of any operating segment.

4.20 Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ =% —

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

=

(viiij The entity or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

Group's parent.
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4. TEGFBERBME (&)
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—-ZF

—tFENA=FHIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

()

(ii)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables

The Group’s management determines impairment of
accounts and other receivables on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its debtors and
current market conditions. Management reassesses the
impairment of accounts and other receivables at the
reporting date.

Impairment of loan receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the loan receivables. Appropriate impairment loss for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
and loss when there is objective evidence that the
amount is not recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration
the aged status and likelihood of collection. Specific
allowance is only made for the loan receivables that
are unlikely to be collected and is recognised on
the difference between the carrying amount of loan
receivables and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted using the original effective interest
rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

e h e RHE (&)

AEBEELABARKNGE REBR -G
iR (RRER) RIS EAH
ERGEREF EAEARREEHA
BT EMRFENEERAEREE
ERBERAENMAT RER®WAMT

(i) BURRMKHE M ERSKERE
AEEERETHETRKER
Re E A & W SR IRDRL (B © Bt (R 5T T AR
BEREBANEEELRBRITMS
ARAEL -EREENHREBHE
I A A 8 LS BR R B L A 7 LA R TR
@&

(i) BHRENRE
EIE E E M AT PR U E SR A Uk ]
H-ERBERBRTEE T HE
SR R NI g Cl aY (el 0B
EREBBEREDER -

EEERERSOFHELBERR
AEBEEEE RN R KR EZ ]
BE 1 o fis) FE Ui B SR KA BE U [ B
TEELFERE LERSEK
EXREEMRARAERMER,
BEAARRBRERERB LA ZE
o MERRKREREENTER
SERAMELENREER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &% 115




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ol

B 85 8K M A

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group test annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4.7. It requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Management follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
review available-for-sale investments (note 15) at the
end of each reporting period to assess whether they
are impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, management
evaluates the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the unlisted funds, including factors such
as industry and sector performance and changes in
operational and financing cash flow.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Macau. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
taxes, utilisation of tax losses which is subjected to
the approval and confirmation from the relevant tax
authorities and timing of payment of related taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE
REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue from continuing operations represents (i) the KEFBREEB I BABOREER
loan interest income from money lending business; (ii) B R B WA ()REZAREEA
advisory services income earned from the provision of A M AR 7 P ERAS A B R AR 75 M Rz (i)
consultancy services and company secretarial services; and (iii) KEESEEEB2EBEBRA N
management fee income from fund management business. FEE12PT5F 4L - Diamond Globe& B E 7
As described in more details in note 12, the Diamond Globe ZE-RETAZ+NBHE HEEAE
Group was disposed of on 28 October 2016 which generated EEHERmcEEZFENE (KNKRER
revenue of the net invoiced value of goods sold, after BEEEREZITNE (WER) ) A%
allowances for return and trade discounts where applicable. B R A DI T
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
(Restated)
(ieES)
Continuing operations BEREER
Loan interest income BHH B A 14,680 4,246
Advisory services income JeA i1 PR 75 WL A 26,755 27,285
Management fee income EEBEIRA 12,135 -
53,570 31,531
Discontinued operations DRI
Sales of goods HEEMm 17,459 75,681
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the Group's five

business lines as reportable segments:

(a)

(b)

Money lending represents provision of credit;

Advisory service includes provision of consultancy
services and company secretarial services;

Fund management business represent the investment
management service to investment funds and managed
accounts;

Functional healthcare products includes mattresses,
magnetic chairs, pillows, blankets, food supplements, air
ionizer products, other bedroom accessories and a range
of functional healthcare clothes and accessories; and

OEM consumer electronics products include RS
connectors and transmitters for consumer electronics
products.

There were no inter-segment sales and transfers during the
year (2016: Nil).
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AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 B Z=F—+FNA=1HIFFE

. PaNy BT 3N =
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oWMER (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BARYER BALBEER
Functional OEM consumer
Money lending Advisory services Fund management healthcare products electronic products Total
HE EEEE E4EE DERRERR RREZEHANETER @it
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
IB-tE | CERE| ZB-tF | CERE | ZB-4F | ST E | ZB-4F | CR0E | ZB-LE | CT0F | DBt | ZE0F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T Tkt Tin Tk TET Fin T Tkt Tién T T Tkt
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#83]) (EE7) (#53)) (#%3)) (#55) (#83])
Revenue WA
- From external customers -RENBER
Reportable segment revenue T2RABUA 14,680 a6 2675 | 2,285 12,135 S| 9| 55741 2467 1990 71029 [ 107212
Reportable segment profit/loss) before tax T2 HABREMEH/ (H8) 13310 420|867 ( 26817 1,865 -1 (Aol (128117) (457) (g 34811 (97.476)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 205 513 7 2 m 535
Amortisation of intangible assets ] - - - - - - - 6,592 - - - 6,592
Addition of provision for product warranty ERRERELN - - - - - - - 101 - - - 101
Write-down on inventories FERE - - - - - - - 12,630 - - - 12,630
Impairment of property, plant and equipment n% EERREAE - - - - - - - 1,235 - - - 1,235
Impairment of intangible assets BREERE - - - - - - - 99,135 - - - 99,135
Interest expenses on interest-bearing borrowings 58 & & ¥ BB X 1,334 260 - - 4123 - - - - - 5,457 260
Reportable segment assets T2HAPEE 343 213,247 67,340 62,740 430,977 - - 130,677 - 5363 498,660 412,007
Additions to non-current segment ENFRBABEERE
assets during the year - - - - - - - 1944 - 2 - 1964
Reportable segment liabilities EEE S 86,220 180,264 169 258 291,988 - - 46,640 - 953 378,377 28,115
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

The total represented for the Group’s operation segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

TEER (F)
RAREEEH BRI 2 EARGEH
BREP I ZAEE L EEHERT
ZHEMT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
(Restated)
(igE)
Reportable segment revenue BEE5= 1PN 71,029 107,212
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 2w EERN S (&EE) 32,481 (97,476)
Imputed interest on promissory notes EARER 2 HERN B (3,351) (3,349)
Unallocated expenses (note a) RO (Kita) (21,628) (5,518)
Segment loss before income tax from REERIEREER 2
discontinued operations (note 12(a)) MR FTEELAT o 2B E B
(Htat12(a)) 7,861 128,533
Profit before income tax from REFBEKEEG 2
continuing operations HIBR P45 750 A s 7 15,363 22,190
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AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PWER(EF)
2017 2016
ZE-tF ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
(Restated)
(&gE5)
Reportable segment assets AE2WMAHEE 498,660 412,027
Other corporate assets (note b) HihRBEE (Kib) 86,821 21,345
Group assets SBEE 585,481 433,372
Reportable segment liabilities AEmaHBeE 378,377 228,115
Tax payables JET 18 3,823 10,341
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAEG - 5,442
Promissory notes O E - 66,649
Other corporate liabilities HMARAR 1,011 2,698
Group liabilities SEEE 383,211 313,245
Notes: Wis -
(@)  Unallocated expenses mainly included unallocated interest expense. (@) ROEAZEFERERIEMBMXE-
(b)  Other corporate assets mainly included unallocated other receivables. (b) HMARBEXEEERSREMEUEIE-
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non-
current assets are divided into the following geographical

TEER (&)
AEBERANBES ZIRAREIRD
EEBDAUTIE:

areas:
Revenue from
external customers
REMBEEBA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Principal markets FTEMS
Hong Kong (city of domicile) BE (EEmEMT) 43,273 47,014
The PRC A 15,187 55,801
Cayman Islands HEHS 12,135 -
Taiwan =] 216 4,397
Europe BOM 218 -
71,029 107,212

As at year ended 30 June 2017, the Group's total non-
current assets located in Hong Kong, the PRC, Cayman
Islands and Macau are approximately HK$62,740,000
(2016: HK$62,740,000 (restated)), HK$1,093,000 (2016:
HK$25,673,000 (restated)), HK$242,107,000 (2016: Nil) and
HK$167,778,000 (2016: Nil) respectively.

The Group's revenue by geographical location is determined
based on locations of customers. The Group’s specified non-
current assets by geographical locations are determined based
on physical location of the assets or location of operation in
case of goodwill.
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AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aRER (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was one (2016: HE_ZT—tFA=THIEFE KB
one) customer from the Group's advisory services segment AEEERRE N —R(ZE—X
amounted to HK$18,270,000 (2016: HK$14,420,000 F:—R)EPHWARS8,270,000%
(restated)), which represent 10% or more of the Group's 7T (ZZT—7N4F 14,420,000/ 7T (&K &
revenues. 5)) ) AEAREBERAI10%IIA Lo
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. HIERFTS T AT A
2017 2016
—ZE—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BFEREER
Profit before income tax is arrived HBR TS AT R A 2 0Bk
at after charging: T5| &8 :
Auditor’s remuneration* Z B A 2 * 800 800
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 109 -
Consultancy fee in respect of FHRESERBRER  ERE
fund management business* 6,068 -
Depreciation of property, plant and M- WERERHEITE
equipment 110 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of BT HREF 2 KE
land and buildings* HHOMEE~* 120 -
Staff cost (excluding director’s BETIXRA(TEREENE
remuneration (note 31(a)) (Ha3103))
— Salaries and wages —-HekI& 1,836 1,545
- Pension scheme contribution —RIREFEIHK 27 9
1,863 1,554
* included in other operating expenses e T AH AL SR X
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

9.

FINANCE COSTS 9. BMEMAK
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
(Restated)
(igE)
Interest charges on financial liabilities REHEAATENTRAEEN
at amortised cost: FEER:
— Interest-bearing borrowings* —FrEEE* 21,607 260
— Imputed interest on promissory —EHERZEEN S
notes (note 24) (KHtit24) 3,351 3,349
24,958 3,609

* During the year, a transaction cost amounting to HK$32,300,000 was
incurred by the Group for obtaining a loan facility of HK$450,000,000.
Such transaction cost was recognised to the loan drawdown under this
loan facility at initial recognition and amortised over the loan facility
period (note 23). Accordingly for the year ended 30 June 2017, interest
expenses on interest-bearing borrowings amounting to HK$21,607,000
included an amortised transaction cost of approximately HK$16,150,000.
Excluding this amortised transaction cost, the effective interest rate of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings as at 30 June 2017 ranged from 5%

to 6% per annum.
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AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FIB8BiMAx
Taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at the rates JERTB AN 2 IR AR EE K EEBR
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group EREREBHBRITNE  WREE
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and WITED 2R ENEE -

practices in respect thereof.

2017 2016
—ZE—tHF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
(Restated)
(ieES)
Continuing operations HEREER
Current tax R EARR 18
- Hong Kong —&H 830 5,124
- Macau — BP9 571 -
Income tax expenses Fr S %15 2 1,401 5,124
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before income tax using the statutory rates for the tax
jurisdictions in which the Company and its major subsidiaries
are domiciled are as follows:

10. FiEBiRAX (&)

ERARBREEEWME QR FENT
T RDARE R MR TE B R AT E A E A R0
B PS5 A M B PSR S S BRan T

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
(Restated)
(reE)
Profit before income tax 8% P15 i A& A 15,363 22,190
Tax on profit before income tax, MBRETE R AN M MBIE
calculated at the rates applicable REBRBEEERK
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HAREKTE 2,321 3,661
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRBTARERNEEEN
previously not recognised MBeE (2,492) -
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERMIBERNT BT E 456 868
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIHBEALN BB E 1,109 595
Others =i} 7 -
Income tax expenses FriS®iF & 1,401 5,124

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong for the year.

Macau corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of
12% on the taxable profit arising in Macau for the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 30
June 2017 (2016: Nil).
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AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 20 September 2016, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement to dispose of Diamond Globe Group,
which composes of functional healthcare business and
OEM consumer electronics business, at a cash consideration
of HK$100,000,000 to Dream Star International Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Linjia, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, (the “Disposal”). The Disposal
was completed on 28 October 2016 (the “Disposal Date”).
The Disposal constitute a discontinued operation under
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” (the “Discontinued Operations”) as functional
healthcare business and OEM customer electronics business
represent the Group's two major lines of business. The sales,
results, cash flows and net assets of Discontinued Operations
were as follows:

(a) Analysis of the results of the Discontinued

12.CRIEREER

R-ZZE—RNFNAZ-+H KNEBFIUE
B & - JAHZIE £ 1CE100,000,000/% 7T
£ Diamond Globef= @ ( E B E I RE1E
REEBRRREREEELEEFED)
FDream Star International Limited ( F
KRBz EERRIMNEREREHRST)
([HEHE]) HEFBHER TN
FTAZTNB(THEBE]) 5K &
R REZEB KRR EREBE M
BEFEBRAEBE I MAEEER HE
SIHEBK BB B EEREST [151E
PEIFRDEERDRIELEES] 2
ERIEEEEB (ERIEEEEK]) -
ERIEREEBHE & Hense
EEEFRENT

() ERIEBERB ZEBE/DM:

Operations:
Period from
1 July 2016
to the
Disposal
Date 2016
—E-RF
tA—H
EHERH
A ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(fE5)
Loss for the period/year HR/FEER (7.861) (101,599)
Gain arising from the disposal of HENBRREE 2 W
subsidiaries 48,884 -
41,023 (101,599)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 #£E#HE 127

nrs |




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

12.CRIEREXE (Z)
() DRIEEEEIE S EBESH:

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Analysis of the results of the Discontinued

Operations: (Continued)

(%)

Period from
1 July 2016
to the
Disposal
Date 2016
—E—XREF
+tH—H
ZHERH
il —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Revenue A 17,459 75,681
Cost of sales 8 & A A (16,730) (59,599)
Gross profit EH 729 16,082
Other income and gains HAh U A K2 M 5 88 84
Selling expenses $HE R XX (6,202) (22,949)
Administrative expenses THAX (2,476) (21,380)
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE - (99,135)
Impairment of property, mE BERZERE
plant and equipment - (1,235)
Loss before income tax R FTISTATE 18 (7,861) (128,533)
Income tax credit TS e - 26,934
Loss for the period/year BN, FEER (7,861) (101,599)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Analysis of the cash flows of the Discontinued

Operations:

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

12.CRIERBEXEE (Z)
(b) BRLBEEEHESHBD:

Period from

1 July 2016
to the
Disposal
Date 2016
—E—XREF
+tH—H
ZFHERH
il —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Net cash inflow from KEEBEANRESFRA
operating activities 9,665 1,849
Net cash outflow from REXBREENRESFRL
investing activities - (1,906)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from ERIERERBMELERN
Discontinued Operations WEFRACEFRL) 9,665 (57)
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. DRIEREEK (&)
(c) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: () HENBATMNUWE:
HK$'000
FAET
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFEBE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) WM BERZRE (Hit14) 2,436
Intangible assets (note 16) | EE (Kit16) 22,767
Inventories FE 58,221
Trade receivables FEU B FERFX 2,557
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSFEEY 31,642
Prepayments and deposits TR RIE Rige 11,392
Trade payables JERHE SRR (8,655)
Accruals and other payables fEEHE R N E b T FE (26,238)
Provision of warranty 1R A5 B (642)
Tax payable JE 1~ 7 T8 (2,965)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE (5,395)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A (3,435)
81,685
Release of exchange reserve RHEH B R G REFERIE LHE
upon disposal of subsidiaries (30,569)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o & M B A A B &S 48,884
100,000
An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of the HECRIECEEBEEACRERE
Discontinued Operations was as follows: SRR
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration BeRE 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERS RESEEY (31,642)
Net cash inflows arising from HEMBRAREEANESRAFE
disposal of subsidiaries 68,358
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

12.CRIERBEXEE (Z)
MIHDRILESEBTS  LBRES
2ERFERBENSCET 25 M
MRAE B R IEAE 4 2 750 R LB

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
For the purpose of presenting the Discontinued Operations,
the comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the related notes have been re-presented as

if the Discontinued Operations during the year had been BRI
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.
13. EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. 8REF(E#E)
For continuing and discontinued operations: MIEFERCRLEREEEMS .
Basic HAK

AREHAANBEGRERRAF, (B
18) YRR T3 Bk AT &

The calculation of basic earning/(loss) per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(gE5)
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year NAREE AELERN,FEA
attributable to the owners of wmF ()
the Company 53,095 (84,320)

No. of shares

No. of shares

iR = & & R
‘000 ‘000
TR F i
(Restated)
(FE))
Weighted average number of ordinary ANGTESRERRAF
shares in issue during the year after (E1E) 2 AR M 26T H
the adjustment of share bonus RROBEEE T 22 %17
elements in share issued under the KA IRARE ZFR
share placing as set out in note 26 BBITEBRMET S
used in the basic earning/(loss) per
share calculation 3,658,132 3,373,217
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

13. EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BRER(BR) (£)
For continuing and discontinued operations: (Continued) REERCRLIGEEBMmE: (&)
Diluted #E
Diluted earning/(loss) per share for both years was the same BRFATEE BITETHE SRR
as the basic earning/(loss) per share as there was no potential HMEFEzSREERN, (BE)H
dilutive ordinary share issued during the year. BEREANRFN, (EE)HER -
For continuing operations: RISEREEBMS:
Basic HK
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to the RABEE AEBIGETREARBT TR A
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TERBRFE:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
(Restated)
(rE5))
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year RARER ABIEEA
attributable to the owners of FEmHM, (EE)
the Company 53,095 (84,320)
(Profit)/Loss for the period/year from REERIEEEEBR 2
discontinued operations BN FE Carl) BB (41,184) 101,386
Profit for the year from REFERKEEH 2
continuing operations F % 7 11,911 17,066
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above FIfERmrBE ENERERNREER
for both basic and diluted earnings per share. P aF & AE R o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

13. EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BREBR (B#E) (&)

For discontinued operations:

Basic and diluted earnings per share of the discontinued
operations is HK1.13 cents per share (2016: Basic and
diluted loss per share HK3.01 cents per share) based on
the profit for the period from the discontinued operations
of approximately HK$41,184,000 (2016: loss for the year
HK$101,386,000) and the denominators of 3,658,132,000
(2016: 3,373,217,000 (restated)) ordinary shares.

The comparative figures for the basic and diluted loss per
share for the year ended 30 June 2016 are restated to take
into account of the effect of the above bonus elements
arising from the share placing completed during the year
retrospectively as if they had taken place since the beginning
of the comparative period.

CRIEEETE:
BEHANBCRIESEELMBZ
i K #941,184,0008 70 ( =& — /<
FFEEEIE101,386,0008 0) Ko
§3,658,132,0001 (=& — <~ F:
3,373,217,0000% (&£ &%) ) @R B
RIS EXEB 2 BRERARBERT A
BR1I3BIW (ZE—RF - BREREK
BHE B ENR3.01E L) -

BE T R"EAA=TRHLFEZSE
BRERLEEFE LBERFELET
AB BT K Bt A R AR AL & 2
P2 AR BMmE R LR E RN S
o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Computer Motor
improvements machinery equipment equipment vehicles Total
B -EBR
BENELE BERKE BAERE EHRE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TATL TAL THEL FAL THAL
At 1 July 2015, as restated RZE-ha5tA-H
(ms5))
Cost, as restated A (EES) - 17,578 593 69 1,190 19,430
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZiHTE LRE
impairment, as restated (=5) - (15,663) (510) (63) (489) (16,725)
Net carrying amount, REFE (EE5))
as restated - 1,915 83 6 701 2,705
Year ended 30 June 2016 HEZT-"F1A
STHIEEE
Opening net carrying value FOEHFE - 1,915 83 6 701 2,705
Additions NE 1,575 151 237 - 1 1,964
Depreciation bk 22) (348) (40) - (125) (535)
Impairment loss REER - (1,235) - - - (1,235)
Net exchange differences ERFEE 47) 91) (12) - (43) (193)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FRKEEFE 1,506 392 268 6 534 2,706
At 30 June 2016 and RZB-RERA
1 July 2016, as restated STARZ-E-A%
tB-R(£E3)
Cost, as restated AR (EET) 1,528 16,499 781 65 1,109 19,982
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Z5HTE RE
impairment, as restated (LE5) (22) (16,107) (513) (59) (575) (17,276)
Net carrying amount, RERE (K83)
as restated 1,506 392 268 6 534 2,706
Year ended 30 June 2017 HE-Z-tHFxA
STHLEEE
Opening net carrying value FURETE 1,506 392 268 6 534 2,706
Additions NE - - - - 110 110
Depreciation e (45) (112) (20) - (145) (322)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR
(note 12(c) (HE12(c) (1,435) (273) (234) (6) (488) (2,436)
Net exchange differences ERFER (26) @) (14) - (1) (58)
Closing net carrying amount EXEHEFE - - - - - -
At 30 June 2017 RoB-t%F
RA=TH
Cost KA - - - - 402 402
Accumulated depreciation RitHE - - - - (402) (402)
Net carrying amount RERE - - - - - -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2016, property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$1,476,000
(restated) are related to the Group's functional healthcare
products business. The net carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment related to functional healthcare products
business amounting to HK$1,476,000 (restated) are combined
with other assets under the cash generating unit ("CGU") of
functional healthcare products business and are assessed for
impairment testing at that CGU level (note 16).

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,235,000 (restated) was allocated to write
down the value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
(note 16).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

14. 9% BERERE (&)

REBEE_Z—AE~NAZTHLEE A
491,476,000 7T (L£F5) 2% - B
EREEEAEE ZNEEREERE
B BEN,476,0008 70 (KEH) 2
MeEMRBEREBBERZINE - BE
Bz EmFEENEHRBERE
BrheELEM ([(REELEMN])E
TZHMEEAHTIRZREELEN
B EETRER RS (HaF16) -

HE-_ZT—A"FXAZTBHLEEFEE" R
EET 1B 491,235,000 7T (K &E7|) D&
DERAMBAEEYE BEMEEBZ
B1E (Kat16) -

15. JHHEERE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Unlisted fund investments, at cost FEFMESKE  HKAE 242,107 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has three
(2016: Nil) unlisted fund investments.

(i)

(if)

On 29 March 2017, TAR Fund Management (Cayman)
Limited (“TAR Fund Management”),
owned subsidiary of the Company since 12 April 2017,

a non wholly-

entered into a subscription agreement to contribute a
total amount of HK$100,000,000 for the subscription
of approximately 10,000 non-redeemable, non-voting
participating shares of Tap Growth Fund SP Il (“Tap
Fund 1II") which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The amount of the Group's contribution in Tap Fund I
represents 14.3% of the total commitment of this fund.
As at 30 June 2017, the carrying value of the Tap Fund Il
is approximately HK$100,000,000.

On 1 May 2017, Ample Success Developments Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
two subscription agreements to contribute total amounts
of HK$71,666,000 and HK$70,441,000 respectively for
the subscription of approximately 7,000 and 7,000 non-
redeemable, non-voting participating shares of TAR High
Value Fund SP Il ("TAR Fund II") and TAR High Value
Fund SP 1l ("TAR Fund III") respectively which were
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The amounts of
the Group’s contribution in TAR Fund Il and TAR Fund
Il represents 10.7% and 10.5% of the respective total
commitment of these two funds. As at 30 June 2017,
the carrying values of the TAR Fund Il and TAR Fund IlI
are approximately HK$71,666,000 and HK$70,441,000
respectively.
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15. JHHERSE (£)

RBEMR - AEEBF=E(=F—RX
FE)ELTESRE

—
=

(i)

RZZE—-—+tF=H=Z+ AN
H ' TAR Fund Management
(Cayman) Limited ([TAR Fund
Management ) (BE=ZZF—t &M
ATZBREREARRAT ZIFZEM
BARDIYREHZE ARRE
#310,000%Tap Growth Fund SP Il
([Tap Fund Il ] - A S EES T
3) 2 AIBE [ R IS 2 R
& #8%6100,000,0008 7T - N B
MATap Fund Iz HESFEMRAENE
THEERBZ143% R_F—+
FRXA=1H Tap Fund lIZEEMEE
#]7%100,000,0007% 7T ©

RZZTE—tFRHA—H ARQF
ZEENBRAREKREEERAD
RIFI UMMM RERE ARRE
TAR High Value Fund SP Il ([TAR
Fund Il ]) & TAR High Value Fund
SP Il (TAR Fund IIl]) (HRFES
S L) m Rl 47,0000 &
7,000k NP fEE R MG EELE
B&1D 5 Bl & & ££71,666,0005% 7T
70,441,000/ 7T - N £ B A TAR
Fund IIZTAR Fund Iz £ &4 %8
DREERZMEES 210.7% K&
105%FERLFE - R_T—+F X
B =-+H"TAR Fund II&TAR Fund
Nz BREE 5 Bl 4 /71,666,000%8
JC 170,441,000/ T °
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

The investment objective of the unlisted funds is to invest in
debt instruments of financial services vehicles.

Given that the Group has no power to govern or participate in
the financial and operating policies of the investment entities
so as to obtain benefits from its activities and does not intend
to trade for short-term profit, the directors of the Company
designated the unlisted fund investments as available-for-sale
investments accordingly.

As at 30 June 2017, the funds mentioned in note (ii) above
amounting to approximately HK$142,107,000 are under the
management of the Group and from which the Group earns
fees from the provision of fund management service.

As at the end of the reporting period, the unlisted fund
investments classified as available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment because the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

15. JHHERSE (&)

FEMESZREBNARRETBRG
NRIZEFT A

ERNAKEYTEEREXSHERETR
BT R B BOR A B HE B I A &
N AERR BN ETEE RARA
EEMERTHLMESRERAIHY
E®E-

Bk

Y

RZZB—+FRXA=+HB £ i)
Frit 2 % #97%142,107,0007 7T * J5 H
AEBEE MAKERTEBRHEE
CEERGRIMER-

RBERR DB/ HEEREZIH
EHESREUKANBREZY R
AAARRBEZRRERFETERSE

5
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ_=—ZF—+FNNA=1HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. BILEE

Vehicles
Franchise registration
Brand names networks mark Total
mIEEHE BIHEERLR ERBZEFE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TEX TET TER
At 1 July 2015, as restated R-Z—H%+H—H
(&=5)) 116,854 21,276 - 138,130
Amortisation, as restated & (gEy) - (6,592) - (6,592)
Impairment loss, as restated (note) REEE (&275) (#1:2) (85,738) (13,397) - (99,135)
Exchange difference ERER (8,149) (1,287) - (9,436)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016, K=F—A"FXA=1H
as restated k=T-~E+A—H
(=E35)) 22,967 - - 22,967
Addition NE - - 1,202 1,202
Amortisation i - - (109) (109)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLA (HiF12()
(note 12(c)) (22,767) - - (22,767)
Exchange difference =% (200) - - (200)
At 30 June 2017 R-ZE-tEXA=+H - - 1,093 1,093
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, brand names were considered
to have an indefinite life as they have been in the market for
many years and the nature of the industry in which the Group
operates was that the brand obsolescence was not common if
supported by appropriate level of marketing.

Note:

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the recoverable amount of the CGU of
functional healthcare products business had been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projection based on the financial budgets
covering a six-year period approved by the senior management. The valuation
of the CGU was made by reference to the valuation report issued by APAC
Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer. Key estimates and assumptions used for determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU are as follows:

Growth rate during the six-year period average of 3%

Gross margin average of 40%
Pre-tax discount rate 19%
Growth rate to extrapolate cash flow projections 3%

Estimates and assumptions are determined by the management based on
the past performance of the segment and management’s expectation for the
market development.

With reference to the assessment, the directors was of the view that the
recoverable amount of the CGU of functional healthcare products business
was estimated to be approximately HK$23,245,000 (restated) and therefore
an impairment loss of approximately HK$100,370,000 (restated) in respect
of the CGU of functional healthcare products business was identified for
the year ended 30 June 2016. The impairment loss was allocated to write
down the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets by approximately HK$1,235,000 (restated) and HK$99,135,000
(restated) respectively of which approximately HK$85,738,000 (restated) and
HK$13,397,000 (restated) were allocated to write down the carrying value of
the brand names and franchise networks respectively pro rata on the basis of
their carrying amounts.

The impairment loss was primarily due to change in customers’ preference on
certain products.

%éﬁﬂi%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁi

—tENAZTHIEFE

16. BILEE (£)

EERS nEEBREREEERSF
H RERZEREAECEATSS
FORAKRBREMETECHERSE
BERENHSERFEF T mE— KT
BB

HEZZT-—REXNA=ZTHILLFE EtREE
mMEBBRSELEBM 2 ATRESEDREAIAD
REEBHENNFHYRBELEENRERE
TR ENEAEEEE ZRCELABNZEE
TS EBUAEREEGEMBERNEETELER
BERAFNBEZGERSFH - RETRESELE
Lz el SREAERZEZMERERERNT:

RAFHRAZEREX F15R3%
E= F19540%
B AT IR & 19%

EReREBWAUZERE 3%

BERBERDBEEERES D BERARE
%ﬁmi%ﬁé‘?&z}ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁém °

W2ERBTEL EFRAMELREEREBZ
& B 4 By 2 A e & 88 ik 5§ 49 723,245,000
B (EEY]) AUREBE_T—~F~A=1H
IFFERDELRBEREBIRSEESEMER
B 518 49100,370,000/8 7T (KX E51)) < BEE B
BAREDMBAYE BERBREAREFLEE
8K TH 18 491,235,000/% 7T (4 & 751]) % 99,135,000/%8
T (#E &) - H A 485,738,000/ T (KK EF) &
13,397,000 7T (&£ &%) 2 9 B & 5 5l MUK @ k2
ERRETHERAAEEE (KESEEAELAE
%) o

BEBRIERTFPHETERNRTREMK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 #£E#HE 139




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2017 2016
—E—tF T REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
(Restated)
(&E7)
At beginning of year REH] 62,740 -
Business combination X=BE 0

(note 32 and note (b)) (H1aE32 K [t iEm)) 167,778 62,740
At end of year RE R 230,518 62,740

Notes: et -

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the recoverable amount of the CGU
of advisory service business has been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projection based on the financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by the senior management.
The valuation of the CGU is made by reference to the valuation report
issued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer. Key estimates and assumptions used for
determining the recoverable amount of the CGU are as follows:
Growth rate during the five-year period 3% (2016: 3%)
Pre-tax discount rate 22% (2016: 22%)
Growth rate to extrapolate cash flow

projections 3% (2016: 3%)
Estimates and assumptions are determined by the management based on
the past performance of the segment and management'’s expectation for
the market development.

With reference to the assessment, the directors are of the view that the
recoverable amount of the CGU of advisory services business is estimated
to be HK$83,000,000 (2016: HK$92,000,000), which exceeds its carrying
amount of HK$62,740,000 (2016: HK$62,740,000) and thus there is no
impairment indication.
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HEZT—LFRA=THILFE BERRS
EBzHREELBEM 2RO SETIRER
NEREREHANTENPRBEBESEE
MALRERAMENEREEETE %A
EEBEMsBEEN2EBLAEREXME
MG AEEMERERERAFATEZHE
BEFL - REECRCEEEMZ ATRE S
FERz T B[ RERET:

REFHBRZERE 3% (ZF-RF:3%)

AT & 2% (ZF-RF:22%)
FERERERN
ZERX 3% (ZF-RF:3%)

B ERBRRVAEEEREN A 2BERE
REBRBHMSERZAHMET

K2ELGBIG EERRERRBEL 2R
D AL AU el & FE k5T 483,000,000
BT (ZZ — 754 192,000,000/ 7T) * 8
t H BEE 162,740,000 71 ( ZZF — /N4 -
62,740,000/ 7T) + E L SR BT K ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(b)

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the recoverable amount of the CGU
of fund management business has been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projection based on the financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by the senior management.
The valuation of the CGU is made by reference to the valuation report
issued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer. Key estimates and assumptions used for
determining the recoverable amount of the CGU are as follows:

Growth rate during the five-year period Nil
Pre-tax discount rate 17%
Growth rate to extrapolate cash flow projections 3%

Estimates and assumptions are determined by the management based on
the past performance of the segment and management’s expectation for
the market development.

With reference to the assessment, the directors are of the view that
the recoverable amount of the CGU of fund management business
is estimated to be US$61,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$475,800,000), which exceeds its carrying amount of
HK$167,778,000 and thus there is no impairment indication.

18. INVENTORIES

17. 58 (£Z)
Hiat: (&)

(b)

RBE-Z—tFA=ZTRLFE E&FE
BEBZRESELBEMZATROSETRE
AR EREBIENTFRYRELERE
ENREREBATENCEBEEETE 2R
CEEBUZEEDNZEBIAERERM
ERMGEAREENEMERERIATE 2K
ERESEL -BEERSELBLZARES
MRz T2 E RERERNT:

RAFHNERE i
BT HT IR X 17%
HERESTEBAZERE 3%

B RBROVBEEERED M 2BERS
REBBYHMSERZAHMEE

RIFT G EERA ECEREBIRGE
A4 Bz AT el & FE fk 5T 4561,000,0003 7T
(25 47475,800,00078 7T ) » B H R EE
167,778,000/ 7T [ it 3 MR E I 5K

18. &

2017

— L
HK$'000
THET

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FHET
(Restated)
(FeE))

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R #
ERm
LK

- 15,129
- 30,107
S 18,921

= 64,157
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 19. FE R BR =X
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
(Restated)
(FgE)
Management fee receivables [EWERE 20,923 -
Advisory fee receivables FE R A & 4,600 -
Receivables from sales of goods HEEYEWFRIE - 3,345
25,523 3,345
Ageing analysis of accounts receivables as at the respective REmEAE BUEREZEZAHR
reporting dates, based on invoice date and net of provision, MBRBEENRRITOT
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
(Restated)
(L&)
0-30 days 0£30H 8,064 695
31-90 days 31290H 8,485 1,870
91-360 days 91&360H 8,974 770
Over 360 days 360H A £ - 10
25,523 3,345

142 COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED EE{EiZMR AR A



nrs |

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. BWERR (&)

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days
(2016: 30 to 90 days) to its customers from advisory service
business and trading business for the year ended 30 June
2017. Management fees receivables from fund management
activities are mainly due at the end of the relevant valuation
period of the investment funds and managed accounts.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

HE-_Z—+tFXAZt+HLEE &
SRR THEMBREBEBREZIEBRR
FZEEHA30E90H (ZT— K F:
30E90H) B2 EEEB L EWNEESE
AEZRREESREEEREFPZEBMH
BEHM ARSI

3 4 18 51 3% H R AR 1 B (B Y FE e B 3R A9
BRiR D ATEAT -

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
(Restated)
(fE5)
Neither past due nor impaired K@ BRI AR R E 25,123 1,933
1-90 days past due #HEI1 A ZE90H 400 791
91-360 days past due #HI91 H £360H - 611
Over 360 days past due #HI360H M £ - 10
Total 4z 25,523 3,345

Impairment of accounts receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group is not able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the accounts receivables are impaired.

MEEBIFRBERARBEEXIZRER
PR R RAGFRAME T B R BIZA R
FEU IR SR RE SRR (B - B A5 A h IR E KB
R~ R B H R AR B IR
RARC HBRBEDR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z—

—tFNA=ZTHIEFE

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Accounts receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default. Management fee receivables and

advisory fee receivables of approximately HK$20,923,000
(2016: Nil) and HK$4,600,000 (2016: Nil) have been

subsequently settled respectively.

The Group’s management considers that accounts receivables

from sales of goods that were past due but not impaired for

each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit

quality. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of

accounts receivables from sales of goods past due but not

impaired. No allowances for bad and doubtful debts have

been provided as at 30 June 2016.

The directors of the Company considered the fair values of

accounts receivables are not materially different from their

carrying amounts become these amounts have short maturity

periods on their inception.

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES

19. BUWERF (&)

K@M ARBEC BREREL LI
U EERERCHRZTREFEH-
EREEERAREKREMEZRRIL
20,923,000 L ( — T — NG #) K
4,600,000 70 (ZZT—XRF E)ERH
BEE-

AEBECZEEERANSREAMHEE
BmATE 2z A A R E R EBEER
DERFEEER-AEELEMRHEE
BEmZEBRERFEEMERM - R

E-R"EAA=-TAH HMEEDREER
Bt o

A EU R B R A AT RS HI A B H -
BARREFEBRZERAZ A FER
HEEHETEERER -

20. ERER

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)
(reE5)
Fixed-rate loan receivables EBEWMER
— On demand or within one year —RERE—FA 234 213,247

As at 30 June 2017, the interest rate on the Group’s loan

receivables is 18% per annum (2016: 12%-24% per annum).
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group uses internal
credit assessment process to assess the potential borrower’s
credit quality and defines its credit limits granted to the
borrowers. The credit limits granted to the borrowers are
reviewed by the management regularly.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on
loan receivables on an individual basis. The assessment also
includes evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement, including the
current creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of each borrower.

In determining the recoverability of the loan receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the loan
receivables from the date of credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. This includes assessing the credit history
if the business, such as financial difficulties or default in
payments and current market conditions.

The ageing analysis of loan receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

—tENAZTHIEFE

20. EWER (&)

MMNBEFPEHER A AKEEHA
NBEEFHRERTHEBEERT 2B
EER TETETZEBRAZEE
BHE-BRAEEEEEEREREER
HRgaT o

AEBZBRABZRERNEETHENKE
SR OWAE < 7T TR B FE AT B AT U B R

BREE DA RIZEEE ZHE B E
Hlfméff BEHRESERT2BRERK
RECER o

REE RRE R 2 o] B Y - RS
a,u\ﬁ%zixﬁiﬁﬁﬂa%ﬂ*%ﬁjE%iéﬁ
HEEREERZEEERZEFNE
ERRMBERBZEECE W HR
RESIER S RR BRI

3 4 18 51 3% H R AR 15 (B Y FE I & 3R A9
FRik DTN T

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(Restated)
(BEH)
Neither past due nor impaired R BR TR R R B 234 213,247
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, loan receivables included a
total carrying amount of approximately HK$234,000 (2016:
HK$205,775,000) which are neither past due nor impaired
at the reporting date, for which the Group believes that the
amounts are considered recoverable given either the fair
values of the pledged securities or properties are sufficient to
cover the entire balance on individual basis or those balance
of approximately HK$234,000 (2016: HK$7,472,000) are
subsequently settled. No allowances for bad and doubtful
debts have been provided as at 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

The directors of the Company considered the fair values
of loan receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods on their inception.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group include the following:

20. EWER (&)

21.

HE-_ZTE—+tFAA=ZTHLFE"
FWRERBPEAREAHEERE
%4 /234,000 L (ZF — RN F:
205,775,000/ 7T ) #) 7% 180 B 75 AR Rk (B 5%
B HREERESFSIWEZ AFER
BREERZUNZN2HEH AEER
R ERIBWAAAE AT B k2 S AR A
/234,000 0 (ZZF—754F : 7,472,000
BLT)REBHEE - R _T—+tF <A
= THRFHEREERE®E (2 —RF:
) o

HREWE B RAE REHA R -
BARREFTBRERER 2 A FEAR
HEEHETEERER -

ReRREEED

AEBZzBReMRSFEVEREUATS
18 :

2017 2016

—ZE—tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

(Restated)

(feE7))

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 5,729 21,345

The cash and bank balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$8,000 (2016:
HK$19,032,000 (restated)).
currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange

RMB is not freely convertible

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
the banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

146 COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEIEMR AR AF

REBUARBEBEZR KR
B A8, 0008 T (Z T —XNF:
19,032,000/ 7T (&£ &) ) - ARER
SEHLBAHME - BRIFEHREHAM
SNEBBGEOIREE SERNEERE
RE ANEEAI S BEREEITIINEZE
BRRITHEARBH G AEME -



Tra |

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE
22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 22. EERA
Ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts payables, based on AEERBNEFIZEZAHNRED T
the invoice dates, is as follows: m
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Restated)
(FE7))
0-30 days 0%Z30H 1,972 1,366
31-90 days 31£290H 4,126 3,357
91-360 days 91£360H 4,614 6,935
Over 360 days 360H KA £ - 1,088
10,712 12,746
The Group was granted by its creditors with a credit period %?i_ Z—+HFRXA=Z+THALFE X
of 1 year for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: 30 to 90 EEEEBRART F2EEH (=
days). = —/\¢ :30F90H) -
The directors of the Company considered the carrying KRR EERA BER2EMEEAR
amounts of accounts payables approximate to their fair value. FEEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

23. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

23. 5tEEE8

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

(Restated)

(&E7)

Bank overdraft RITEX 22 -
Other loans: (note) HEMER: (M)

- Secured —HER - 180,259

- Guaranteed —BER 191,920 -

— Unsecured — A 175,541 -

367,483 180,259

2017 2016

—E—+t5F —ZE-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHETT

(Restated)

(feE7))

On demand or within one year NERFH—FA 367,483 180,259

148 COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEIEMR AR A F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—

23. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note. Other loans amounting to approximately HK$367,461,000 obtained from
independent third parties (2016: HK$180,259,000) have the maturity
period of 1 year (2016: 1 year) and with repayment on demand clause are
carried at amortised cost and classified under current liabilities. Interest
rates of the Group's other loans ranged from 5% to 6% (2016: 1%) per
annum. The details of the finance costs related to the Group's other loans
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2017, one of the other loans amounting to approximately
HK$191,920,000 is guaranteed by the Company.

As at 30 June 2016, other loan amounting to approximately
HK 180,259,000 was secured by the entire ordinary shares of Gold
Smart Finance Limited (formerly known as Hugh Rich Finance Limited), a
subsidiary of the Company.

During the year, the Group has obtained loan facilities of
HK$1,000,000,000 (2016: HK$200,000,000) of which a total
of approximately HK$367,461,000 (2016: HK$180,259,000)
have been utilised by the Group as at 30 June 2017.

On 30 August 2017, one of the Group's existing loan facilities
of HK$450,000,000, with the carrying amount of loan drawn
down amounting to approximately HK$191,920,000 as at 30
June 2017 and the original maturity date on 29 December
2017, has been granted a further one year extension with the
new maturity date on 29 December 2018.

On 30 August 2017, the Group has further obtained and
drawn down a new one-year loan of HK$100,000,000 from
an independent third party to repay another existing loan on
31 August 2017 with carrying amount of HK$101,289,000
as at 30 June 2017 which was supposed to mature on 25
September 2017.

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

—tENAZTHIEFE

CETREE (&)

M BBUFE-"FEBSZEMERD A
367,461, oooﬁém<—ffﬁ¢:
180,259,000/ 7T) EHH( — X
F—FH) Eliﬁﬁfyi 1%#&}%&@%
BRAGE THEARSDAB AE@E M

BERZERNENFSEECETE (ZT—X
FE) BAREZHMEREEZRE
A B RN G A M IERERM 9 -

RZTE—+F X A=+A" ﬁﬁﬂ% GRSl
*é%@191,920,000%m2%; NCIE
fRe

RZE—-RXEFXNA=ZTHB BHEY
180,259,000 7T 2 H 4 & X 1 A~ 2 &l i /8

REEFBERLR (ABELHBER
RA) 2 2 WMEBRIEHIER -

RAFERN K&K BB ERF
1,000,000,0008 L (=& — ;XN F -
200,000,000/ 7t ) 2 &'; h%ﬂ,gﬁﬁtﬂé
H#1367,461,0008 L (ZF — R F

180,259,000 7T ) B =& — ti*\ﬂ
—+tHAAEEHA-

R-ZE—+tHENA=Z+H AEEHBEA
ZEFBEF  —% 52450,000,000%
T(RZE—tFNAZTHRIRER
2 BREE 4 A191,920,000/8 7T /R E
HAA-Z—tHE+-_A-t+NABH))ZE
REEINER—F FEBMHAAZZ—
F+ZA=+NH-

RZE—+tFNA=1+TH A&EEH
—BBUE=HE—SEBTIRR—F
%ﬁmfﬁﬁmoo 000,000 7T 2 B 5%+ BA
n= ti)\ﬁ +—REES—
JEEA —tFNA-+HBEHZE
“ﬁgmﬁﬁé_?ftif\ﬂ:wﬂz
BRTEI{E A101,289,0005% T °
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFEF

23.

24.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of these
interest-bearing borrowings by discounting their future cash
flows at the market rate and the directors consider that the
carrying amounts of the Group's interest bearing borrowings
approximate to their fair values at each reporting date.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 6 January 2016, the Group issued the promissory notes
(the "PN") with principal amount of HK$70,000,000 as
consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Giant Goal Limited (note 32(ii)). The PN had a
maturity of 12 months from the date of issue and interest
free.

The initial fair value of approximately HK$63,300,000 of
the PN was calculated based on the principal amount and
discounted at the effective interest rate of 10.5% per annum
for the period before its maturity. The valuation of the PN
as at the date of its issue was carried out by APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited, using discounted cash
flow approach by applying an appropriate discount rate on
the estimated future cash outflows on repayment of the PN.
The discount rate was derived from market risk free rate
and risk premium specific to the Group with reference to
market sources. The fair value of the PN was recorded as
financial liabilities stated at amortised cost in accordance with
HKAS 39. The imputed interest amounting to approximately
HK$3,351,000 (2016: HK$3,349,000) is charged to profit or
loss during the year.

The directors of the Company considered the carrying
amounts of promissory notes to approximate its fair value.

On 6 January 2017, the whole amount of the PN had been
repaid.
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23.

24.

FEREE (F)
ARRARERFEBIEM SN RRBRZFT
BREEZREAZRE  UEFZER
BREEZATE BEERR NE®RE
AHAREFEREZRAEREARQYF
BEE-

AHEE

RZEBE—RF—ARB AEBEETA
©#/370,000,0007%8 JT A AN R & ([
HEE]) 1A EEGiant Goal Limited
2EFE BITIRABRAE (M 7E3231)) < %
REFRGINHER 2B BT H B2
MAEARREE -

# LR IE 2 ¥ AT {E 463,300,000/
TERASEE  WRHIEAHRE
ERFFIEI0.5FEEIF - A H EHENHEEE
THZEEDBHEAREEN G RERE
RARBBERBEEBALEE ZHE
KBRemBE 2 BEAMBEE FHMER
DMEHEIT ZANR KL TS
EREARAEE 2 s EER X K
B EEBEMAEMS AALRBEZAF
EREE B G EA FE305 R & R A
ARRSIIER S B & - (HE 783,351,000
BT (ZZ—754 1 3,349,000/8 70 ) I 4F
R B IR

RRAREEFRRAGREBENRAESRA
NFERE-

R-_E—+F—ARNB EAALEEZE
HRECEEE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

25. PROVISION FOR PRODUCT WARRANTY

25. EmiRE R

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FEx FE T

(Restated)

(&EH)

At beginning of the year REH] 647 837

Add|t|on //J\E - 101

Utilised =2 - (236)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 12(c)) HEWNBRE (HiF12(c) (642) -

Exchange differences E W ERE (5) (55)

At end of the year RER - 647
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BT FIE TS DT

Current liabilities MBBE - 427

Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 220

- 647

The Group provided two to three years product warranties
to its customers depending on the product types, under
which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The estimate
of the provision for the product warranty was based on
sales volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. The estimation was reviewed on an ongoing basis
and revised by reference to the current defective rate of
products sold.

AEEREREARMATPRREME=
FEMRE AoRBEEHERREH
B Eike EDM B 2 BETIIRE
HEEBURBEEBRREKRKFE ZBELER
EH -t B EERT RS2 ERAD
EEMAT —_%_—T/Ef IR
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B2
2016
ZE-tF “ERF
Number Number
of shares of shares
R #A Rir %A
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HKS$'000
TR TEL TR TER
(Restated)
(& E5)
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREECOETLERR 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEFIBTZLERR
At beginning of the year REA) 3,201,500 32,015 3,201,500 32,015
Share placing (note) BRoEE (H#) 640,000 6,400 - -
At end of the year RER 3,841,500 38,415 3,201,500 32,015
Note: ki

On 1 December 2016, the Group entered into a placing agreement to place a
maximum number of 640,000,000 shares at a price of HK$0.1 per share.

On 16 December 2016, the Group completed the placing of new shares,
in which 640,000,000 share were placed at HK$0.1 per share. The closing
price was HK$0.144 per share which quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
date of placing of new shares. The cash proceeds which net of share placing
expenses of approximately HK$62,375,000 were raised and an amount of
HK$55,975,000 was credited to share premium.
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RZZ-—R"F+A—H AEEFTVEEHZE
PAIZ 2 20.178 7T 2 {8 1% B & & £:640,000,000% 1%

1/\ °

RZE—RNE+ZA+AB AEBEKESEHR
7+ £#640,000,0000% 2 BIR0 1B TR E - RELE
AR (D B HA R B X FT FT 3R 2 W T (B B B R0, 14478
T ALEBHEMBRGFE (NBRROHESHAX
1% ) #962,375,0007% 7T - B 4 #855,975,000/ 7L 2%
B s B AR o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

27. RESERVES 27. #fE
Group rEE
Statutory reserve JETE 1
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the BEPEEREEREERAEEET
PRC and the articles of association of the respective PRC EHPHEMBEARNAEMERMA - S HE
subsidiaries within the Group, each of the PRC subsidiaries is BB RRIRERBE RO ARG ERM
required to transfer 10% of their profits after tax prepared BHEA0%MRIBEBEE X ERHE B
in accordance with the accounting regulations in the PRC to ERENERERETMERNS0% °
the statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of BRARERA RERLMIEENERER
their registered capital. Such reserve may be used to reduce K E M BB IRA o
any losses incurred or to be capitalised as paid-up capital.
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements AEENREBSERENFANED -
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated EESINZEMBEREKETOETTEH R R
statements of changes in equity on page 76 to 77 of these EREFEEHRA-

financial statements.
Company AT

Share Accumulated

Premium* losses Total
PR 47 % 18 ZitE#E #aat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FAT T T
At 1 July 2015, as restated RZZE-—HFLH—H
(&E5) 458,371 (296,086) 162,285
Loss for the year, as restated ~ FEEE (KE5) - (76,423) (76,423)
At 30 June 2016 and R=ZB-—XR"FANA=+H
1 July 2016, as restated E—ZE—-—XH¥tHA—H
(REF) 458,371 (372,509) 85,862
Profit for the year FE & - 15,293 15,293
Issue of shares upon RO B ERZITRGD
share placing (note 26) (H1it26) 55,975 = 55,975
At 30 June 2017 R-—ZZE—+tEX<HA=1+H 514,346 (357,216) 157,130
* The share premium account of the Company arises on shares issued at e AR AR B AR T E R s BB ITRG M E
a premium. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share o RBERAESBHEQRE ROBERAIMA
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company provided ANEHEAAD IR HEEREERRMRS B
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to % ARARBHEEHETRBEBEKBREFRE
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as HMER  FREH DR

and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 28. AR A 2 M BARR K

COMPANY
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 1 July 2015
ZB-tf “E-RE —T-1F
~AA=1H NA=TH +H—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit TER TET FTEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&=7))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREHE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR Z®RE 170,001 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b WA 80,000 1,705 1,705
Due from subsidiaries JE B B 2 RIS IR 214,209 116,821 193,828
Due from a related party R —4EEALRE - 1,512 1,479
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB EEY 1,365 - -
295,574 120,038 197,012
Current liabilities RBaE
Due to a subsidiary B —FRM B ARZE 190,000 113 112
Other payables and accruals HibEAHBERENAE 2,242 2,049 2,601
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 74,253 - -
Tax payable eI 3,535 - -
270,030 2,162 2,713
Net current assets RBEEFE 25,544 117,876 194,299
Net assets EEFE 195,545 117,877 194,300
EQUITY B
Share capital RN 26 38,415 32,015 32,015
Reserves R 27 157,130 85,862 162,285
Total equity BER 195,545 117,877 194,300

ReEFEXR _T—tFNAA-TLAR
EREETERATIALTRERE:

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 29 September 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Liu Tin Lap Lee Man To
BXx 3= O]
Director Director
EZEF o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017 and

29. A QR 2R
RZB—+FR_ZE—XRFA=1+H"
FTEMBARFBEOT

2016 are as follows:

Place and date of
incorporation and

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

operation Particulars of issued ARAEERERDL
Name EMRIREE capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
%R BERAS BEARK/EAMERRE BE B TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-t% ZE-RE| ZB-tE| ZTRE| 2Bt 2%
Amble Precious Holdings Limited 8 December 2015, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary 100% 100% - - Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
REERERAR 2R+ ANR 50,0008 5 % 50,000 5B 100% 100% - - REBR
RBRAES AE1ETZEBR AEIZETZ LRk
Ample Success 5 April 2017, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary 100% - - - Investment holdings
Developments Limited the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
ERERERAA “E-tEmARR: 50,0008 5 % 50,000 &A% 100% - - - REBR
RERAHES AEIETZEBR AEIZET LRk
Beyond Champion 23 November 2016, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary 100% - - - Investment holdings
Investments Limited the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
BEREERRA “E-RE 50,0008 5 % 50,000 B 100% - - - REBR
+-A=t+=h8" EE1ET2EER EEIET AR
EBRAES
New Rich Global Group Limited 27 February 2017, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary 100% - - - Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
HERREEARAT —E-tE 50,0008 5 & 50,000 & % 100% - - - REER
ZRZt+tA: AE1ETZERR AREIZETZERR
RERAHES
Ultra Rich Global Limited* 22 November 2016, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary 51% - - - Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
BRERERRA ZE-RF 50,0008 5 % 50,000 5B 51% - - - REBR
+-A=t+=hB" EE1ET2EER EE1ET AR
EBRAES
Giant Goal Limited 10 July 2014, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
Giant Goal Limited —E-mELATA: 50,0008 5 & 50,000 & % - - 100% 100% ®RAZR
ERRAES AE1ETZERR AREIZETZERR
Gold Smart Finance Limited 25 March 2014, HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Provision of money
(formerly known as Hong Kong divided int01,000,000 | divided into1,000,000 lending services
Huge Rich Finance Limited) ordinary share ordinary share
SEIBERRA “Z-pF 1,000,000 4% | 1,000,0005775 & - - 100% 100% RERERS
(MREEMBARAR) =AZt+EH &% 1,000,000% E&M] | 1,000,000% & &R
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29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. RMIB ARl zHE= (&)
Place and date of Percentage of equity interest
incorporation and attributable to the Company
operation Particulars of issued ARRRERERL
Name AMEIREEZ capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
%8 HERAH BRORE/HRMELRE B k4 TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF ZRRF| ZB-tE| ZTNF| ZB-tE| ZFF
Jianghe Capital Limited 18 June 2014, HK$1 divided into 1 HK$1 divided into 1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of advisory
Hong Kong ordinary share ordinary share service
TTARERRT 2| 1BTARBREER | DB RIRERR - - 100% 100% REFARE
G RRAGRE
Fine One Global Limited* 9 December 2015, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary - - 51% - Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
E-RIRERRA* —Z-nE 50,0008 & & 50,0008 & it - - 51% - REBR
+=ZAnA: AE1ETZERR AE1ET EBR
RERAHES
TAR Fund Management (Cayman) 1 November 2006, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary - - 51% - Fund management
Limited* the Cayman Islands shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each business
TAR Fund Management (Cayman) ZEERE 50,0008 5 1% 50,0008 it - - 51% - ESEEER
Limited* T-A-8" AE1ETZERR AEIETZERR
ko
TAR Investment (Cayman) Limited* 24 November 2016, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary - - 51% - Fund management
the Cayman Islands shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each business
TAR Investment (Cayman) Limited* ~ —Z—XF 50,0008 & 50,0008 & & - - 51% - EREREHK
+-A=t+mA" AE1ETZERR AE1ET EBR
RS
Diamond Globe Investments Limited* 2 January 2009, 100 ordinary 100 ordinary - 100% - - Investment holdings
the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each
Diamond Globe Investments Limited* —ZZAE—F=H- 1008 & 1% 10085k - 100% - - RERR
RERAES AE1ETZERR AEIETZERR
BAREREZEARERAET 29 June 2006, Registered capital of | Registered capital of - = - 100%  Trading and
the PRC US$3,380,600 US$3,380,600 manufacturing of
healthcare products
BRRERRZERRERA ZEERE ZREE AMER - - - 100% EBERZERBER
AAZTIE HE 3,380,600% T 3,380,600% T

156 COMBEST HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{EIEMR AR A F



29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

Place and date of
incorporation and

29. RMB AT 2R (/

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

—
=1

=

operation Particulars of issued ARRRERERL
Name AMEIREEZ capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
%8 HERAH BRORE/HRMELRE B k4 TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF ZRRF| ZB-tE| ZTNF| ZB-tE| ZFF
BERELEERERAR" 1 March 2010, Registered capital of | Registered capital of - - - 100%  Trading of functional
the PRC RMBS5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 and healthcare
products
BERECEEEBERAAY “F-FF=f-A" THER HHER - - - 100% EENHUEREER
# AR #5,000,0007 AR 5,000,0007C
TERECEERERAR 23 April 2009, Registered capital of | Registered capital of - - - 100%  Trading of functional
the PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000 and healthcare
products
LERREXEEERAR ZERENF ZREE HMER - - - 100% EENRUEREER
mAZ+=R #E& AR %500,0007 AR 500,000
Well Wisdom Limited® 12 January 2010, HK$10,000 HK$10,000 - - - 100%  Investment holdings
Hong Kong divided into 10,000 divided into 10,000
ordinary shares ordinary shares
Well Wisdom Limited? “E-ZE-ftzE 10,0007% 10,000 7T - - - 100% HERR
i AAR10000REER | 5 510,0008 % ER
Well Sources Enterprises Limited 12 March 2009, 50,000 ordinary 50,000 ordinary - - - 55%  Trading of OEM
("Well Sources")* the BVI shares of US$1 each shares of US$1 each consumer Electronic
products
Well Sources Enterprises Limited ZEENE 50,0008 5 it 50,0000 & it - - - 55% REGRERBHET
(Twell Sources ] ) * ZR+=R: AE1ERZEBR | EEIETZERR EmZ%
EBRUES
BREZEFARLAN 16 September 2009, Registered capital of |  Registered capital of - - - 55%  Trading of functional
the PRC HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 and healthcare
products
BRELETARAT" ZE2ENF ZREE HMER - - - 55% EEMRUHREER
NATRE 10,000,000% 7t 10,000,000/ 7

* Newly acquired during the year ended 30 June 2017

# Disposed of during the year ended 30 June 2017

The above table lists the Group's subsidiaries which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affect the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

* RBEZT—tFRAZTHILEFERKE

# RBE_ZT—+tFXA=ZTHLFELE

EEZRRLERMINAEENKBRRT

BAFENEERIEY
SEEEFENERRD
HE i P /B 2 B B9 R 15

Eo

& HERA
CEERBIE

SAREBDITT
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29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests set out as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest and

29. AMB AR 2R (&)

pul

BEERFERERZFE2ENB AT
ZHBHEIWT

voting rights held by Profit/(Loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of the components non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FEREEREL PREFLZRER
RAER RERRERRFEZLA B/ (B8) RitFiEREL
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF | TR ZE-tE | 2R ZE-tE | 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL TAR TEL
Ultra Group (note j) BRER (i) 49% N/A 2,051 N/A 4,185 N/A
ok TaR TER
Well Sources and its subsidiary Well Sources R £ i & 22 &
("Well Sources Group"”) (note if) (TWell Sources£ 8| )
(Witi) N/A 45% (161) (213) - 3,626
TER
Notes: it
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Summarised financial information in respect of Ultra Group that have

material non-controlling interests are set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts before intergroup

eliminations. Since Ultra Group was acquired during the year (note 32(i)),

summarised financial information on its assets and liabilities as at 30

June 2017 and summarised financial information on revenue, profit, total

(i) BARERNFZEREzZ BHEEZIHER
BEHINMT - ATHBEMRZREEAR
IR 2 % - BB RERFREKE
(BaE320)) 8 ER-F—tFRXA=+tHZ
EENBEBEUBEMBE URB -T—+F
MA+-HEZ-ZT—tFRNA=+B 2=

comprehensive income and cash flows for the period from 12 April 2017 A 2EBABERBEREMNBERRE
to 30 June 2017 were presented. HE R

As at
30 June 2017
R=-B—+t#&
NB=+H
HK$'000
FET
Current assets MENE E 21,148
Non-current assets EMENEE 100,000
Current liabilities mEEE (112,580)
Net assets BEFE 8,568
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. RMB AR 2 s (&)

Notes: (Continued) Bt : (#)

(i) (Continued) (i) (%)

For

the period
from

12 April 2017
to

30 June 2017
—E—tF
B+=HZE
—EZ2—-tEXA
=+B#HE
HK$'000
FTHERT

Revenue A 12,135

Profit for the period B A 4,184

Total comprehensive income THEMSERE 4,184

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from: UTEEZES (L), A FE:
Operating activities MR TS (99,655)
Financing activities WEEB 99,733
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(i)~ Summarised financial information in respect of Well Sources Group that
have material non-controlling interests are set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before intergroup
eliminations. Since Well Sources Group was disposed during the year
(note 12), summarised financial information on its assets and liabilities as
at 30 June 2017 and summarised financial information on revenue, loss,
total comprehensive income and cash flows for the period from 1 July
2016 to 28 October 2016 were presented.

29. AMB AT 2R (&)

Hiet: (&)

(i)

B A S KIEER M 2S 2 Well Sourcess B 2 Bt
BERBEENET U THBERBRER
SEARRIEEHA 2 © % BWell Sources
ESERTFREE (M) ER=2F—+
FRAZFTAZEERBBEVBEREE A
REBEZZE-—RFLtA—BE-T—XRF+A
Zt+tNBZzHE EE 2EEARERES
HENBEARBEELE 25

As at As at

30 June 2017 30 June 2016

R-Z—+tF RZT—RF

~A=1+H ~A=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Current assets MEAEE - 44,220
Non-current assets ERBEE - 168
Current liabilities mBAE - (46,333)
Net liabilities BEFE - (1,945)
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

29. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. RIMIB AR zHER (&)
Notes: (Continued) Wit : (#)
(i) (Continued) (ii) (#&)

For
the period For
from 1 July the year
2016 to ended
28 October 30 June
2016 2016

—E-XRF
tA—RBZE HE
—E-RE —E—RF
+A=+NH ~NA=1+H
A IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A 2,467 19,941
Loss for the period/year BN FEEE 357 473
Total comprehensive income THEMSERE 357 473

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from: UTEEZESRAS
(FRid) 58 -

Operating activities KA 104 (445)
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee

The Group leased an office (2016: offices and factory
premises) under operating leases arrangement during the year
of 30 June 2017. The lease runs for an initial period of one
year (2016: three years). It did not include any contingent
rentals.

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

30. KREFHOEE
EBFEEA
REBE-_T—+tE XA=-+AHILEE"
AEEBBELROTHRERAS (=
T-NEPRAERBEVE) LW
SHH—F(ZE—AF =ZF)HHE
EA AT -

RE B H - ARERE A REEEHE
HENOARRZERENKEENT

2017 2016

ZE—tF ZERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

(Restated)

(KgES)

Within one year —F RN 60 548
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RE_ZEFRAF(BREEEMTF) - 422
60 970
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 1. EEFMESAREEEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Remuneration of the directors is as follows: EZHHOT
2017 2016
—2-tf —T-RE
Salaries, Salaries,
allowances Contributions allowances  Contributions
and benefits  to pension and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total Fees in kind scheme Total
§& ZBR Bhe He 2R Bike
e ENE7 AR @ Be ENET BT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHRL FHx FHL TERL FhEL TAL FiET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(R&5) (E=31) (E&3) (EE5)
Executive directors: y17E%:
- Mr. Lee Man To -FHERE - 611 18 629 - 611 18 629
- Mr. Liu Tin Lap (note j) ~BRIKE (i) - 197 7 204 - - - -
- Mr. Qian Shi Yu (note i) -BMFRE (W) - - - - - - - -
- Mr. Yong Kee Poh (note ii) ~BREERE (W) - - - - - 1,169 - 1,169
- 808 25 833 - 1,780 18 1,798
Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES:
~ Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny -RREFE 144 - - 144 144 - - 144
- Mr. Liu Wei Zhong (note iv) ~BBRRE (Witiv) - - - - - - - -
- Dr. Cheng Chak Ho (note v) EREL (M) 73 - - 73 - - - -
- Mr. Nguyen Van Tu, Peter -GEERE 150 - - 150 150 - - 150
367 - - 367 294 - - 294
Non-executive directors: FYrES:
- Mr. Chan Kin Sang (note vj) -REERE (Fivi) 7 - - 7 144 - - 144
444 808 25 1,277 438 1,780 18 2,236
Notes: Ha# -
() Appointed as independent non-executive director on 14 July 2016 () MZZE-—RFLA+HEBAEZEASE
and re-designated as executive director on 22 November 2016. UHERTEERR T —AF+—A
Z+tZHERAERWITESE -
(i) Resigned as executive director on 22 November 2016. iy RZBE—ARF+—AZ-+-BHFEHTT
=
(iii)  Resigned as executive director on 28 December 2015. (i) RZF-—HF+-AZ+/\BEEHT
=
(iv)  Resigned as independent non-executive director on 15 April 2016. (v RZF-AFOA+RABEEIEN
TEE-
(v)  Appointed as independent non-executive director on 22 November V) RZZE—RF+—AZ+ZAEZTA
2016. BALFRITES-
(vi)  Resigned as non-executive director on 12 January 2017. vi)y RZE—+F— A+ _AfTERTE
=o
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31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There was no emolument paid by the Group to its
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two (2016: two)
directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the five
highest paid individuals, other than directors, during the
year are as follows:

NLESFMERSREEENS
(%)

(a)

(b)

BE=ME (&)
BE_T—tFRA=THLF
B-AEEVEAEEENHES
ERBFREFMBEAREINE
EMBERERRBEREE (=
—NEE) e

BE_T—tFRA=THLF
B - TEBEBEFHEXREN
REMFMOLHE(ZF—RF:
&) -

EERSHFAL

RAFE - AEBLEZERHAL
BEMEB(ZE-—RF MB)E
B RENHEFBNR LEXZ2I®
DT RBR - RAEE AR A AR
BEAL (BEFRI) IHBI2 0
T

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHT
(Restated)
(ge=E3))
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e EA R REMET
benefits in kind 1,743 1,627
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31. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

NL.ESFMEREREEENS
(%)
(b) EEREHFAL (&)
FHEBATEENERRFIFESFE

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BABINT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—-tF —ZT—RF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/%8 7T 3 3

There was no emolument paid by the Group to any of
these five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 30 June 2017 (2016:
Nil).

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

()

Acquisition of Ultra Group

On 1 April 2017, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement dated 1 April 2017 (the
“Agreement”) with Novel Shine Limited (the “Vendor”),
an independent third party and a company incorporated
in BVI, to acquire 51% equity interests in Ultra Group at
a cash consideration of HK$170,000,000. Ultra Group is
principally engaged in the provision of fund management
services. The acquisition was completed on 12 April
2017 (the "“Acquisition Date 1”). The acquisition will
enable the Group to broaden its income based and to tap
into the fund management business, which should be
beneficial to the future growth of the Group.

BE-_T—tFRA=THLF
B -AERVEAENZEREER
B ALXAFHMESNAKREH
M REB SRR E (T —NF:
&) -

32. ¥ 56t
(i) WEBWER

R-ZZT—+tFMNA—HB AARFHE
Novel Shine Limited ([E 5] —%
BYE=—FN—HMREBEXRES
RV A/NC DRV - =
—tFMNA—BZEEWH ([%Z
) A EB BN EEZ51%K%
7 38 £ KR8 A170,000,0007 7T °
BEEEFTENEREESEER
B WEEEER-_T—+tFNA
+ZB([KRERH—]) 5 - IiE
EEATASEERMAELRAER
PREESBEEBR UKBEMNRAE
E@EZARKIER -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFF

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

()

Acquisition of Ultra Group (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ultra Group as at the Acquisition Date 1 are as follows:

32. ¥ 86t (£2&)

() WEBEwER (&)

PR BB — - B S 8 2 7] R
BENRBBEZRAFENT:

HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEDY 135
Prepayment and other receivables T8 7 R I8 B H e YR IR 109,127
Accounts and other payables JFE A< BR 30 N E At FE A< FR0E (4,906)
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEEE (100,000)
Net assets acquired gl EEFE 4,356
Non-controlling interests PRI M AR (2,134)
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired B AIFHFIEEFE 2 AFE 2,222
Less: Cash consideration i IBeRE (170,000)
Goodwill (note 17) M (Hat17) 167,778
Analysis of cash flows on the acquisition WEELECBEERENN
Cash consideration ReRE 170,000
Cash and cash equivalents BEWEHEBARZERES M
in subsidiaries acquired BeEEY (135)
Net cash outflows arising from (¥BeEE R REFE
business combination 169,865
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNNA=1+HIFE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 2. a6t (&)
(i) Acquisition of Ultra Group (Continued) (i) WBEBWER (£)

Notes:

(@) The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Ultra Group represents
the synergetic effect by enabling the Group to provide fund
management services to its clients in more efficient and cost-
effective manner by taking the advantages of Ultra Group’s current
client base of fund management services.

(b) Ultra Group has contributed revenue of approximately
US$1,562,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,135,000)
and net profit of approximately US$539,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,184,000) to the Group since the Acquisition
Date 1 to 30 June 2017. Had the acquisition occurred on 1
July 2016, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$66,575,000 and
HK$22,158,000 respectively.

Profit guarantee arrangement

According to the Agreement, there was an arrangement
of profits guarantee whereas the Vendor irrevocably and
unconditionally warrants and guarantees to the Group
that the actual profit before tax of the Ultra Group (the
“Actual Profit”) from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017 shall be at least HK$30,000,000 (the "“Guaranteed
Profit”). In the event that the Actual Profit shall be less
than the Guaranteed Profit, the Vendor shall compensate
the Group for the sum being calculated as the shortfall
(i.e. the Guaranteed Profit less Actual Profit) multiplied
by factors of 11.12 and 51%, which derived to the
maximum compensation limited to HK$170,000,000, the
consideration of the acquisition.

Mt

(a) BEBHEEELZHEREASEER
E%@%IZEEEE%MEEHEfi@EE
TREERERRARARRZTAR
,H\%}E}Eﬁ’%%ﬁéiﬂﬁ%z%ﬂxﬂg >

(b) BEWEHE—RE_Z—+tEF A=
SRR N PN =g g )
1,562,000 7T (185 % 412,135,000
7S 70) R 45 %1 49539,000% T (FHER
414,184,000/ 7)) - Wi FEHK —F
—RNELA-B#E AFRZEEAR
MR A s M % 5 Bl 4) 466,575,000
JT 122,158,000/ 7T °

i FIR & &

BiEZHhH BRI B HMNREL
BBt BT ARE R E GG
WRAAEERELER R_F
—tFE—A—RAE-ZT—tF+=
A=+T—H BHREEBNEERRK
MR (EREN)BEL A
30,000,000/ 7C ([{RFE &) © f
ERRFNDRRERN - BIEF A
MAEEREEER TR 2 (A
REEFREEREF) FA11.12K%
SM% 2B EiTEzEaEEEL
PR 170,000,000/ 7T + BIUK BE 2 1%

B
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

()

(ii)

Acquisition of Ultra Group (Continued)
Profit guarantee arrangement (Continued)

The fair value of the profits guarantee arrangement at
the Acquisition Date 1 was assessed by the directors
of the Company with reference to the independent
valuation as performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer, APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, based on different scenarios of the profit
forecast made by the Ultra Group, assigning with the
appropriate probability to each scenario. The fair value
of the profit guarantee arrangement, which recognised
as financial asset through profit or loss, is nil as at the
Acquisition Date 1 and the reporting date.

Acquisition of Giant Goal Limited, an investment
holding company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability, together with its subsidiaries (the
"Giant Goal Group”)

On 6 January 2016 (the “Acquisition Date 2"), Amble
Precious Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired 100% equity interests of Giant
Goal Group from an independent third party, Grand
Castle Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, at a
consideration of HK$70,000,000, which was satisfied by
the Company'’s issue of the PN (note 24). The acquisition
will enable the Group to broaden its income based and
to tap into the business of money lending and advisory
services, which should be beneficial to the future growth
of the Group.
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32. ¥ 86t (£2&)

()

(ii)

WiEBmER (&)

i FIRE L ()

wmAMRBLZFRRBERAR— 2 2F
BIHARREEL2EBUAER
BXHEMEAEEMNGRERE
[RAREITZ B EELREER
SERELZEMNEBERNZ AEBER
(PEREEMEEZBER)ELF
fm-REBAR—RREEH &M
RELZ P2 AT E(ERBBFT AR

KE-FREBELZESEMR
Yz BEZERER A FGiant Goal
Limited S\ & H Kt B 2 | ([ Giant
Goal&E])
RZE—REF—AXB([KIEA
BM=]) ARRZE2EWMBRF
ZEERERAGIMBILIE=7
Grand Castle Limited ( — R R &
BELZESFMALHRE)KE
Giant Goal& BIFY 2 it - K(E A
70,000,000/ 7T » H B A2 &) & 17
FARBR 2 ANER (Hi7F24) - K
BEERAGEAEEREREKAZR
RIWEENRERERREER A
HEFRANEBHRRIE K -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

32. ¥%a0t (&)

(i) WE—BREBEZHESTMA
Yz REZERER D FGiant Goal
Limited SA & H Kt B 2 8 ([ Giant
Goal&@E]) (#&)

Giant GoalREAIZANEERBE
RKREBBH W RAFEDT:

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(ii) Acquisition of Giant Goal Limited, an investment
holding company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability, together with its subsidiaries (the
"Giant Goal Group”) (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Giant Goal Group as at the Acquisition Date 2 are as
follows:

HK$'000
FHET
(Restated)
(feE7))
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEDY 3,764
Other receivables Hh fE W R IE 1
Trade and other payables JE 1<F BR K % HL th 8 1< 5RIE (167)
Provision for tax IR (3,038)
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired EWEAIHRIEEFENRFE 560
Less: Fair value of the consideration B EHEBREBHRTE (Hitza)
of the PN (note 24) (63,300)
Goodwill (note 17) R (fat17) 62,740
Analysis of cash flows on the acquisition WEEE 2B REN N
Cash and cash equivalents EWENBERARcREeRREEEY
in subsidiaries acquired 3,764
Net cash inflows arising XBeHEEZRERAERE
from business combination 3,764
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(ii) Acquisition of Giant Goal Limited, an investment
holding company incorporated in the BVI with

limited liability, together with its subsidiaries (the

"Giant Goal Group”) (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Giant Goal Group
represents the synergetic effect by enabling the Group to provide
advisory services to its clients in Hong Kong in more efficient and
cost-effective manner by taking the advantages of Giant Goal

Group's current client base of advisory services in Hong Kong.

(b)  Giant Goal Group has contributed revenue of HK$31,531,000 and
net profit of HK$25,674,000 to the Group since the Acquisition
Date 2 to 30 June 2016. Had the acquisition occurred on 1
July 2015, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the
year would have been HK$109,637,000 and HK$56,190,000

respectively.

33. ASSETS ACQUISITION THROUGH ACQUISITION

OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 8 August 2016, Giant Goal Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired entire equity interests
in Create World Enterprises Development Limited (“Create
World"), a company engaged in holding a motor vehicle
and vehicle registration mark and Create World is the
registered and beneficial owner of motor vehicle and vehicle
registration mark, at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,312,000. By analysing the inputs, process and outputs
of the Company, the underlying set of assets acquired was
not integrated in forming a business to generate revenues.
As such, the directors are of the opinion that the acquisition
of Create World was a purchase of net assets which did not
constitute a business combination for accounting purpose.
The transaction was completed on 8 August 2016 and Create

World became a subsidiary of the Group accordingly.
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32. ¥ 86t (£2&)

(i) WE—BREBEZBEESTMA
Y2 REZERAER D FGiant Goal
Limited S\ & H it B 2 | ([ Giant
Goal&@E]) (#&)

Hat -

(@ W Giant Goal kB EA KN E AL
7N £ (38 8 FI A Giant Goal& B &
REBARBCRET P ERNEY -
NERMEERASZ T AMEEEE
P 1R 475 58 AR 7% &Y 163 [R] B% o

by BEEBH_RBE_T-—XRFEFSA=T
H - Giant Goal% & B M A & & & B Uk
A31,531,000# 7T [z 4 #125,674,0007#
TR ZZE—RAFLA—BBETK
B FENGEERAREEBFED R A
109,637,0007% 7t 556,190,000 It ©

3. ZBUWB—HNEBARKBEE

RZE-—RENANB ARG 2Z22E
Kt @A T Giant Goal Limited!4t B Create
World Enterprises Development Limited
([Create World ]) z & &8 Bx # - Create
World A —RI#E/FE —E9E REmHE
B AT WARAZAERERED
K zaAMEREREBA BHE2RED
£31,312,0008 L BBAO M AR B 2
AMIREE  FAEREEEAS T
BIREHEK—EEBAEERA - Ft
EERA WHECreate World BEEE &L E
FE REFREEMEETIEXNERE
H-ZRHERZE—R"ENANBRE
FX - i Create World 2 B It 5K A 7N & [E 2
NN



33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

ASSETS ACQUISITION THROUGH ACQUISITION 33.
OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The assets acquired and the liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

ZRBWE-—ENBARKBEE
(%)
RUkEs BT RE > A ERER Y &K
mF :

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
WWESZ
BREE AF{E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFAET FATT
Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 110 110
Intangible asset | AE 1,202 1,202
Fair value of net identifiable BEREZAENEEFELZ
assets acquired NFEE 1,312 1,312
HK$'000
FA&TT
Analysis of cash flows on the acquisition WHEELSZIRESHREDN
Purchase consideration settled in cash NEREENZEERE 1,312
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALERZ

(@) In addition to the related parties transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group did
not have other transactions with related parties.

() MFAEFFHREREMEIBY etz
FEALTR BN NEEILEEM
HEEALTZRS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BEANETRE (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) TEEEBAEHE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
(Restated)
(L&)
Total remuneration of directors EEREMEEEREAER
and other members of 218 5 B
key management
— Short-term employee benefits — R HEE &R 1,483 3,578
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 35. EXEKIEAE
Movement on the deferred tax liabilities are as follows: FEERIBEENEESHOT

Revaluation of
intangible assets

EMEEEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
(Restated)
(f£E5)
At the beginning of the year REH] 5,442 34,532
Credited to profit or loss NTEBEMELAS
during the year arising from FFAFANER
— Amortisation of intangible assets — T A B (18) (1,649)
— Impairment of intangible assets —-EmREERE - (25,858)
— Disposal of subsidiaries (note 72(c)) —EWB AR (Hit12(c)) (5,395) -
Exchange realignment ME 3 G B (29) (1,583)
At the end of the year RER - 5,442
The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$2,762,000 as REBR-_ZE—+FNA=Z=1THAM
at 30 June 2017 (2016: HK$15,051,000 (restated)) that are 5 E 18 492,762,000 T (=T — X F:
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the 15,051,000 7 (&K &ES|) ) r] B{EHE 8
companies in which the losses arose but subjected to approval HEEEH AR KRR ERTSA - 88
from the tax authority. Deferred tax assets have not been BEBBHE  HER  AA{EE - K&
recognised in respect of these losses as it is considered not BUERZEEERAELHRBEE
probable that future taxable profits will be available from this HAREZEB AR T KAIeEE K KE
group company against which the tax losses can be utilised. RRRA A REK T TR -
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35.

36.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has no deferred tax liabilities as at 30 June
2017 (2016: HK$1,981,000 (restated)) in respect of the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries. No deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of its subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage and monitor the Group’s exposure to market risk,
including principally changes in interest rates and currency
exchange rates, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk
management. As the Group's exposure to market risks is kept
at a minimum level, the Group has not used any derivatives
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
available-for-sale investments, accounts receivables, other
receivables, loan receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
accounts payables, other payables and accruals, interest-
bearing borrowings and promissory notes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
described below.
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35.

36.

EEREEE (&)
R-ZB—+FEXNA=1H AEBEBES
MEARMADIRAFNER G BERRNE
HRcHEESEEHEERE(ZE—X
F:1,981,000/87C (KL EF) ) - BLZF
ZHEMERRAECHEEE REAXR
SE B AR I B E B A R8Ik B BUR
REMEZSEEZEETSENAI B R KRR
R

E bk EE B R RBUR

AEEYEEMRARERRRRIES -
Am BFETHRTER 2T RHE
it AEEREEASEMEEANT
SRR IZ2EENELEXEY 8
RBERBHESRR —KME  A5H
s E E R B IR SR EUR ST R BE c AN ANER
%] Py T b O T 35 R B A 1F ME KR R
7N 6% B30 B PR ] 07 T R ARSI
R AEELEFBELETITES R
THEUEEERG -

AEBNTIECRTIABREAHILER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the fixed rate loan receivables (note 20)
and fixed rate interest-bearing borrowings (note 23).
It is the Group's policy to keep its loan receivables and
borrowings at fixed rate of interest so as to minimize the
cash flow interest rate risk.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk, the Group
entered into fixed rate loan receivables and interest-
bearing borrowings with a short maturity date with
different contractual terms. The position is regularly
monitored and evaluated by reference of anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances (note 27) because these
balances carry interest at prevailing deposit interest rates
and they are of short maturity.

Any change in the interest rate promulgated by banks
from time to time is not considered to have significant
impact to Group.

Foreign currency risk

The Group does not have material exposure to foreign
currency risk as the Group has no material balances of
financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they related. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures on regular basis and consider
its foreign exchange risk to be insignificant.

36. A EEBEHEREEK (&)

()

(ii)

R R @ b

REBEE B RWER (A1i220) &
ERFTBEE (Ait23) BAEERF
BNERER NEEZHRSEHE
M E TR R AB & 2 ) = 4 5 B E A
T PRERERSRENEEAR

RREFEER ARBT IR
2449 81 0 58 50 L 2 oL 3
Rite iR ARETHELRR
RIS ETHF &N ERNLD
SLIEE

REBINGRIRITAEER (A eE21) Y
RengMXmEk RERZEHS
BREBITHERFEFE ABEH
B -

45 17 7B 55 s 40 52 B0 8 B0 T
BAHASEELSALE.

S L B
AEEVHEEAIINERR RES
AEBEY B LEXBOIFDEE
BiENEREERBENERS
o AN SR B E Bl AT H AN Al b I
AR/EINERBI AEK-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk

The management has a credit policy and the exposures to
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customers’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. The Group closely monitors the concentration
of credit risk on individual customers based on their
credit worthiness.

As at the reporting dates, all cash at bank were
deposited in major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC
without significant credit risk.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of its loan
receivables. As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount
of loan receivables is approximately HK$234,000 (2016:
HK$213,247,000). The Group has concentration of credit
risk as 100% (2016: 96%) of the total loan receivables
as at 30 June 2017 which was due from one (2016:
five) borrower. The balance due from these borrowers
except the amount of approximately HK$234,000 (2016:
HK$7,472,000), which has been subsequently settled,
is neither past due nor impaired, of which the whole
amount is considered recoverable given the collateral is
sufficient to cover the entire balance on individual basis
at the reporting date.
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36. MM EEEHEREEK (&)

(iii) FERR

EEERE-HEGERR LR
BEREMEENEERR -

MR AR R N B A WA T F
AEBYHMEERBRETEER
BHNEPETEIEEN G HE
AHEE R HEFPBEMNERCE
REBNEREN TEEEFH
BRI ER REPEEEBHEER
HEOER -

HRAREEERRAGFENS
=HETRS  WBRAERER M -
AEBRBEEFNEELREREE
ZEESFREREF R -

RBEBH MARTREEMN
REBRTEYEEANEERRH
TBRT

AEENEKREFEEREERR-
R-ZE—tEXA=Z1TH EKE
FREBREE A 4234,0008 70 (=
— 7N 213,247,000 7T ) - A&
EBEEESHRER FHA100% (=
T—NF:96%)MEKRERBEEE
R-_TE—+tF X A=+tHAEK—
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ—

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in respect
of its management fee receivables and advisory fee
receivables. As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amounts
of the management fee receivables and advisory fee
receivables are approximately HK$20,923,000 (2016: Nil)
and HK$4,600,000 (2016: Nil) respectively. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as 100% (2016: Nil) and
100% (2016: Nil) of management fee receivables and
advisory fee receivables as at 30 June 2017 which were
due from two (2016: Nil) customers and one customer
(2016: Nil) respectively. The balances due from these
customers of approximately HK$20,923,000 (2016: Nil)
and HK$4,600,000 (2016: Nil) have been subsequently
settled respectively.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loan receivables and accounts receivables
to minimise credit risk. Management has credit policy in
place and the exposures to the credit are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on outstanding
loan receivables and accounts receivables are determined
by an evaluation of financial background, as well as
financial condition of and the anticipated receipts for
that individual account, at the end of the report period.

Fair value risk

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short term
maturity of those financial instruments.

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

—tENAZTHIEFE

36. A EEBEHEREEK (&)

(i) FERR (&)

(iv)

REBMOEKREEE M & REKER
ERTEHREERR R-_T—t
FRNA=Z+TH EBREBEAK
EREMERA2EEEDNNR
20,923,000 7L (=T — R F &)

4,600 ooo;‘%ﬁ(:;f/—\i'
7%7%_ ti/\ﬂ +E| 100%

TE-REE)EKREBEERX
100% (=& — /N & « 45 ) [iE Uk 8 [
BRI ABKME (ZT—RF:
BIEPR—RB(ZTE—RF: &)
BPZRE BRZEREP 2EY
#920,923,0008 C (=& — /\¢
) 54,600,000 7T (ZF — X
Fm)EPRIREBLEN -

AEEHERAEEZEBKERRK

ERERSRKRFEREE U
FERRAER/N-EEEDHT
SEBE WHBEEREERR-
8 R (BB 2 B S R % R AR SR
WERBEE R HREHARNT B
B = DA R B sk O K AR Bl BR P 89 T8
HAWRETE ©

NP ERRE
AEBeMEERBBERNFHE
HAZIH FA ZFERTAZA
FEHERAMETEEAEZR-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. AR EEBBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

(iv) Fair value risk (Continued) (iv) 2FERR (£Z)
The following table presents financial assets measured TREVBRBEQAFERBNEGS
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial BARRABERZAFEFENSRE
position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The E-oMEERBITELZEZTERE
hierarchy groups financial assets into three levels based ERXAFEAENSH ASENRE
on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in AEERRMNIBR=E RTE
measuring the fair value of these financial assets. The fair BRIBEATERE :

value hierarchy has the following levels:

-  Level 1: quoted price (unadjusted) in active - E—E: HREERBENE

markets for identical assets and liabilities; BTI5WE (REH
)

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included - FZE: FEMBREREN
within Level 1 that are observable of the IMEERABGEREE
asset and liability, either directly (i.e. as (n{E#)=skH#E (|
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from REBRIBEME
prices); and BABE: &

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are — BZE: WHNEBERMEMS
not based on observable market data HEAENEEXA
(unobservable inputs). BEig A BE (EEH

RFTSEAZE) -

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the CHEEFMBATERIERTE

financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based on ERHATEFEBE RN &EK

the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair T ABESE-

value measurement.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. A EEBBRRBE (£)
POLICIES (Continued)
(iv) Fair value risk (Continued) (iv) DFERR (£Z)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the REGEMBRRBREAFEFE
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped WERMEESRATRFERA:

into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%-FE ey BB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FHT FHT
As at 30 June 2017 R-ZBE-—tFXA=tH
Financial asset through TABRCGREE
profit or loss
- Profit guarantee - R A RE - - - -
The fair value of the profit guarantee was estimated by i R 3B 2 AT E R A TR
profit forecast. Disclosures of measurement is set out in BT o T E T BB A MITE32(3) - Wi
note 32(i). Should the estimated net profit before tax of WEEHZ2-_ZT—+F~A=1+H
Ultra Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 increase/ I E 2 AR B AT ARG IR
decrease by 5% and all other variables were held L5% K FA B FERFETE
constant, the fair value of financial asset through profit Blft NBEmzemBEEZAFES
or loss would be increase/decreased by nil. I R
There have been no significant transfers between level REmEHRE - F— Z k=B 2HEL
1, 2 and 3 in the reporting period. The methods and EBERER - GTEAFTEMARZE
valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring RARE T = B LA E R &5 B AR R »

fair value are unchanged compared to the previous
reporting period.
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

(iv) Fair value risk (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

36. MM EEEHEREEK (&)

(v) AFEER ()
E=FAFHAHEZYE

Financial
asset through
profit or loss
FABREZ
THEE
HK$'000
T

As at 30 June 2017
Opening balance
Addition

Fair value change

Closing balance

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

(v) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds to
meet commitments associated with its financial liabilities.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group will raise funds from the realisation of its

assets if required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at the respective reporting date, the remaining
contractual maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities
which are based on undiscounted cash flows are
summaries below:

36. A EEBEHEREEK (&)

(v) RBEEZRR (&)
RERSBH RERURBSR
EfEMNASESREERTIEH
AW RABALT

As at 30 June 2017
R=ZE—tHRA=1H
Total

contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted one year or

amount cash flow on demand

BENRER R—FR

BREE RER HRERE

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET TET FTET

Account payables FE 1 BR 5K 10,712 10,712 10,712
Other payables and HEfEARER

accruals ezt & H 1,193 1,193 1,193

Interest-bearing borrowings st EEE 367,483 367,483 367,483

379,388 379,388 379,388
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. AR EEEEREKE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) ZBELRAR (&)

As at 30 June 2016
RZE—-R"FXA=+H

Total

contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted one year or

amount cash flow on demand

BEHARIR R—F A

REE Bem BB SR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(e&5) (e&5) (&5)

Account payables FERBRR 12,746 12,746 12,746
Other payables and E b e RIE K

accruals ezt &R 37,161 37,161 37,161

Interest-bearing borrowings &t B fEE 180,259 180,259 180,259

Promissory notes TS 66,649 66,649 66,649

296,815 296,815 296,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?}

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=—F—+FNA=1+HIFE
36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. AR EEBBEREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (vi) EREENEBEIENHE
category
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets REREDHRERNASEECREE
and liabilities recognised at the reporting dates FMEENEREB BN T -EH
are categorised as follows. See notes 4.8 and 4.11 eRIASHEHEEAEEATE
for explanations on how the category of financial B E2BIM 4.8 411 ¢

instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

Financial assets THEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FATT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Available-for-sales investments AHYERE 242,107 -

Loans and receivables: BRI ERERIE

— Accounts receivables — U BR X 25,523 3,345
— Loan receivables — eI E R 234 213,247
— Other receivables — H fib & We 3k 18 80,168 39,560
Cash and cash equivalents BekREEEDYD 5,729 21,345
353,761 277,497
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REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

36. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. Bl EEEEREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (vi) tREEREBSIENHEE (&)
category (Continued)

Financial liabilities THEE
2017 2016
—E—t —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
(Restated)
(&EH)
Financial liabilities measured at BEHEKNATENEREE:
amortised cost:
— Accounts payables —JETER 10,712 12,746
— Other payables and accruals —HfhERNRIBEREFTER 1,193 37,161
— Interest-bearing borrowings —FrEEE 367,483 180,259
— Promissory notes — A EE - 66,649
379,388 296,815
37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 37. E2ER®

The Group's objectives when managing capital are: AEEEEESMERER:

(a) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going (a) REAEBEMFELCLEL N #E
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for B R N H At F1) 25 48 B & A5 2R B 3R
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; o

(b) to support the Group's stability and growth; and by XBAEENBERER X

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the (0 WMEBERDAMEAEENEREE
Group’s risk management capability. VAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZ =% —

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

The management regards total equity as capital. The
amounts of capital as at 30 June 2017 and 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$202,270,000 and HK$120,127,000
respectively which the management considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected strategic investment opportunities.

AR R M

+tENA=THIFEE

37. B2 EE (&)

AEBEEGE MR MEREREARGE
VEBAEEBARNEATRKEEARR
o BRI REHNAFRESD BHEER
TRE FAHERNRATARFEHRER
ERE BUBRESRENELRERS
K R B3R o

EEEBEREEERERN RZT—LFR
—E-XEXNA=Z+RH BEAXEEH R
49/202,270,0007% 7T %120,127,0007%
TL S ERTEREAAS RTERREEIRE

Kek EEERAZSTRBEE-

The Group sets the amount of equity in proportion to its AEELZEBREMERBLARERER
overall financing structure. The equity-to-overall financing R oNMEMR R EERELX
ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as follows: m
2017 2016
ZE-tF ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
(Restated)
(igE)
Total equity FEREE 202,270 120,127
Overall financing EREmE
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEEE 367,483 180,259
Promissory notes A E = 66,649
367,483 246,908
Equity-to-overall financing ratio ERHERMEL X 0.55:1 0.49:1

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#% 185

nrs |




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z - F—+FNH=1HIFFE

37.

38.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remained unchanged throughout the reporting periods.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

(a) As a result of the Discontinued Operations as set out in
note 12, the comparative statement of comprehensive
has been re-presented as if the Discontinued Operations
during the current period had been discontinued at the
beginning of the comparative period.

(b) As disclosed in note 3.3, owing to change in
presentation currency of the Group from RMB to
HK$ during the year, the comparative amounts have
been restated to conform with the current period’s
presentation, and a third statement of financial position
as at 1 July 2015 has been presented.
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37.

38.

ExER (&)
FEEEBEREARRIEANER
BEAREEE - RSB B E L RS
EHRBRERSBRRER RS A
EE BRI

bE®mEE

(@) HRHMEI2AHZERIEEE R
B LBREERRDEBH - BOR
AEEAZERIEEEEBER L
SHARBIAE R L

(b) FRANPHEE3.IPAWE XA KB 2
2IEBCREFABARBENR
B BEReBEDREBINGE
AHEZZ2NTA X E 2R
E-RFELA-HZE=OHMBMR
MR e



A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and

Five Year Financial Summary

EFFEUBHRE

AEEEAEIEMBFENREREERR
BEREERR R ERME (DREKEC 7%
REZPBEHRERREES (WER) )M

restated as appropriate, is set out below. e
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF —T-RF —Z-nF —T-mF —Z-=F
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FER FHET FHET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&E7)) (&) (EE7)) (E7))
Results E4
Revenue WA
Continuing operations SEICE R 53,570 31,531 - - -
Discontinued operations BRI EER 17,459 75,681 118,630 130,415 137,588
71,029 107,212 118,630 130,415 137,588
Profit/(Loss) before taxation &% £ 2 Br%i AT
from operation wR (FR)
Continuing operations SECEET 40,321 25,799 (6,055) (5,926) (5,531)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER 41,023 (128,533) (134,554) 29,863 35,001
81,344 (102,734) (140,609) 23,937 29,470
Finance costs 5922
Continuing operations RELEED (24,958) (3,609) - - -
Discontinued operations BRI - N (1) - -
(24,958) (3,609) (1) - -
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRBAIEF, (EE)
Continuing operations SEREER 15,363 22,190 (6,055) (5,926) (5,531)
Discontinued operations BRI T 41,023 (128,533) (134,555) 29,863 35,001
56,386 (106,343) (140,610) 23,937 29,470
Income tax (expenses)/credit Frig% (B%) &R
Continuing operations SEICEET (1,401) (5,124) = = =
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER - 26,934 4,096 (6,869) (6,162)
(1,401) 21,810 4,096 (6,869) (6,162)
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEHHEHRE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t*F —E-RF —Z—AF —T-mF —T-=F%
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TER FET FHET FHET FEL
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (& E5) (BE7)) (&7)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation FERBEZ
for the year wR (FR)
Continuing operations FREEEED 13,962 17,066 (6,055) (5,926) (5,531)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER 41,023 (101,599) (130,459) 22,994 28,839
54,985 (84,533) (136,514) 17,068 23,308
Attributable to: BT AR,
— Owners of the Company . UNGIEZ =N 53,095 (84,320) (137,011) 16,771 22,973
- Non-controlling interests — IR RS 1,890 (213) 497 297 335
54,985 (84,533) (136,514) 17,068 23,308
Assets and liabilities and BEHAER
non-controlling interest FERER
Total assets BEE 585,481 433,372 299,173 445,349 441,979
Total liabilities FER=E (383,211) (313,245) (79,995) (89,108) (98,232)
Non-controlling interests TR A (4,185) (3,626) (4,104) (2,849) (3,359)
198,085 116,501 215,074 353,392 340,388
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